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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR HALF YEARLY, 2016
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Dear Shareholders

The Directors of Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited are pleased to present
the performance report along with the financial statements for the period of six months ended
June 30, 2016.The financial results for the period are summarized below;

(Rs. In Billion)
2016 2015
(Restated)

Revenue (net) 42.223 46.153
Operating Costs & expenses

Fuel Cost 12.094 14.996
Other Cost of Services 36.669 29.453
Distribution& Admin Expenses 5113 4.912
Exchange Loss 0.093 0.502
Other Income & Adjustments 2.160 2.006
Operating Loss 14.568 3.715
Finance Cost 6.262 6.802
Loss Before Taxation 20.831 12,517
Loss After Taxation 20.876 14.012

Globally airline revenues witnessed a decline of 1.3% year on year in the first half of 216,
while total number of airline passengers worldwide declined by 1.4% during the same
period.

PIACL witnessed a negative impact on revenue mainly due to strike and complete shutdown
of operations during the month of February 2016 for almost ten days, along with reduction in
yield due to market forces net revenue decreased by 8.51%.

Combined effect of downward trend in fuel prices and impact of replacement of aging fleet
with fuel efficient aircraft resulted in almost 19% decline in fuel cost in comparison to the
corresponding period of last year. Due to reduction in KIBOR finance cost decreased by
7.93%. Other cost of services increased by almost 25% mainly due to increase in lease
rentals on account of inductions of new aircraft on lease and increase in salaries and wages.
Three narrow and two wide body aircraft were inducted in the fleet during the period under
review which resulted in increase of ASKs (Available Seat Kilometers) by 13.34%.

For the period under review external auditors have opined that the management has not

carried out any exercise to assess the impairment testing of remaining four A-310 aircraft at
June 30, 2016. However, keeping in view the operational requirements subsequent to the
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR HALF YEARLY, 2016
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

period under review two A-310 aircraft are being brought back into service for which
management has initiated the process for seeking necessary approval from Aviation
Division.

In line with the markets trend for forecasted growth and to bring in efficiency in operations
management has decided to phase out old aircraft and replace more narrow body aircraft
which will help in enhancing the brand image by giving better frequency and connectivity to
the passengers.

Moreover management is focusing on increasing the customer base, through bilateral sharing
agreements with major airlines coupled with other measures including but not limited to fleet
and routes rationalization focusing on E-Commerce, these measures will help us to increase
our revenue which is key to operational efficiency.

PIA Investment Limited (a subsidiary) achieved a net profit of PKR 88.4 million while
Skyroom Limited (a subsidiary) made a net profit of PKR 7.95 million during the six months
period.

We are hopeful that despite the current downturn, with the induction of modern, fuel

efficient aircraft, dedication of our employees and continued support of shareholders as well
as government of Pakistan, we will emerge stronger for the good times ahead.

For and on behalf of the Board

NN Uall-

Muhammad Irfan Elahi
Chairman-PIACL

May 10, 2017
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EY Ford Rhodes KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Progressive Plaza Sheikh Sultan Trust, Building No.2
Beaumont Road Beaumont Road

Karachi - 75530 Karachi - 75530

REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim balance sheet of
Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited (the Company) as of June 30, 2016
and the related unconsolidated condensed interim profit and loss account, unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated condensed interim
cash flow statement, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity and
notes to the accounts (here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial information”) for the
six months period then ended. Management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review
Engagements 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity." A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

As more fully explained in note 4.2 to the unconsolidated condensed interim financial
information which describe that all A-310 aircraft have been grounded / retired from
operation due to old aged and requirements of major improvements and modification during
the current and subsequent period ended June 30, 2016. The tendering process was
commenced immediately after period end and no bids were received. This situation along
with other factors disclosed in the said note indicate possible impairment in remaining four
A-310 aircraft as at June 30, 2016. The carrying value of remaining four A-310 aircraft
including spare engines, related capital spares and stores and spares as at June 30, 2016
is Rs. 1,977.797 million, Rs. 409.426 million and Rs. 599.722 million, respectively. The
management has not carried out any exercise to assess that whether remaining four A-310
aircraft including spares engines, related capital spares and stores and spares are stated at
their recoverable amount as at June 30, 2016 in accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard (IAS 36) “Impairment of Assets” and the Company's
accounting policy for impairment. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the accompanying interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respect,
in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.
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EY Ford Rhodes KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to the following notes to the unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements:

i. note 1.2 which states that during the current period, the Company incurred a net
loss of Rs. 20,876.086 million, resulting in accumulated losses of Rs. 290,789.750
million as of June 30, 2016, and, as of that date, the Company's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by Rs. 186,228.703 million. These conditions along with
other factors disclosed in the abovementioned note indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

ii. note 11.2 which states that the Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Provident
Fund's contribution of Rs. 10,190.087 million along with mark-up thereon of Rs.
3,824.8924 million were not deposited by the Company within stipulated time as
required by Section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of the above matters.

Other matters

The figures of the unconsolidated condensed interim profit and loss account and the
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarters
ended June 30, 2016 have not been reviewed, as we are required to review only the
cumulative figures for the six months period ended June 30, 2016.

EY Ford Rhodes KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner Engagement Partner
Khurram Jameel Muhammad Nadeem
Date:

Place: Karachi
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Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited
Ung lidated Cond I Interim Bal Sheet
As at June 30, 2016

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
016 2015 2016 05
(Un-Audited) (Audited) (Un-Audited) {Audsied)
Nate (Rupees in "000) —— (USS in "000) seeveeee
ASSETS
NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Fixedl assets
- Property, plant and equipment ? 73,827,787 76,602,307 704,930 730,440
- Intangibles 16,822 45,645 161 435
73,844,600 76,647,952 705,091 TI0875
Long-term investments 4,513,149 4,511,581 43,284 431,020
Long-tenn advances - - = .
Lon i deposits and prepayments 5 6942410 _ 9602002 66,288 91,569
Total non - current assels 55,320,168 90,762,435 814,663 BG5S, 464
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares. 3,063,481 3,039,872 19,251 28,986
Trade debis 5,937,696 9,294,690 56,695 88,627
Advances 1,591,190 1,574,020 15,193 15,009
Trade deposits and shodt-tenm prepayments 4,984,788 2,355,635 47,596 22462
Ohher receivables fi 6,850,714 6,154,674 65413 58,688
Short-tenm investments 19,220 19,220 184 183
Cash and bank balances 7 5,291,092 2,641,305 50,521 25,187
Total current assels 17,738,181 25079416 164,853 239,144
TOTAL ASSETS 113,058,349 115841 851 1,079,516 1,104,608
Sl i Lk
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital & 52345110 52,345,110 499,807 499,136
Reserves 4,396,189 4,374,621 41,976 41,714
Accumulated losses (290,789,750) _ (269,946,703) __ (2,776,547) (2,574,071)
Tatal sharcholders’ equity (234,048451)  (213,226,972) (2,234,764 {2,033,.221)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net 5,218,546 4,863,889 49,828 46,380
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing 9 58,971,990 49,766,421 563,082 474,547
Term finance and sukuk cenificales i 19,398,410 26,707,209 180,705 254,666
Liabilitics apainst assets subject 1o finance lease 9,470,295 13,218,479 90,425 126,045
Advance from a subsidiary 4,203,405 4,209,056 40,135 40,135
Delerred habilities 15,877,270 24,732,719 247,084 235,838
Total non - current liabilities ' 127,921,370 118,633,884 1,221,431 L131,231
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,
Trade and other payables 1 121,890,270 108,498,696 1,163,845 1,034 588
Accried interest 12 11,889,817 11,965,110 113,528 114,093
Provision for taxation 386,145 231,779 3,687 2,210
Short-tenn borrowings 13 34,826,912 36,940,201 332,538 352,242
Current maturities of:
- Long-term financing 9 17,331,365 27,534,829 260,968 262,557
- Term finance and sukuk cenificates o 10,272,000 13,196,419 98,080 125,834
- Luabilities against assets subject 1o finance lease 7370,378 7,204,016 T0 78 68,604
Total current liabilities 213,966,884 205,571,050 2,043,021 1.960,218
TOTAL LIABILITIES 341,888,254 324,204,934 3,264,452 3,091,449
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HJIDSSIJ-‘9 115,84 |.E|_' I.G‘H.Slﬁ_ |,|0|,ﬂ_
Contingencies and commitmenis 4
* The annexed notes | 1o 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed imerim financial information. u
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’akistan International Airlines Corporation Limited
Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Profit and Loss Account (Un-Audited)

For the six months period ended june 30,2016

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Note —ememmmemmeeeeee (Rupees in "000) (USS in "000)

Revenue - net 15 41,223 412 46,153,366 19,978,092 20,277,963 402,935 453,383
Cost of services
Aircraft fuel (12,094,256)] [ (14,996,409) (6,967,398) (7,447,912) L (115,415) r (147.316)
Others 16 5 5 (349,938 (289,329)

(48,764.076)  (44.449454)  (27,212,725)  (24,345,197) (465,353) (436,615)
Gross (loss) / profit (6,540,664) 1,703,912 (7,234,633) (4,067,234) (62,418) 16,738
Distribution costs (2,546,636) (2,337,634) (1,291.449) (1.119.799) (24,302) (22,964)
Administrative expenses (3,227,135) (2,573,375) (1,709.933) (805.351) (30,796) (25.279)
Other provisions and adjustments 17 (2,392,140) (2,516,984) (1,404,718) 2,516,586 (22,828) (24,725)
Exchange (loss) / gain - net (93,528) (501,865) (109.334) 184,702 (893) (4,930)
Other operating income 231,871 511,172 75,248 466,021 2,213 5.021

(8.,027,568) (7.418,686) (4,440,186) 1,242,159 (76,606) (712,871
Loss from operations (14,568,232) (5.714,774) (11,674,819) (2,825,075) (139,024) (56,139)
Finance costs 18 (6,262,892) (6,802,388) (3,115,180) (3,429,153) (59,766) (66,823)
Loss before taxation (20,831,124) (12,517,162) (14,789,999) (6,254,228) (198,790) (122,962)
Taxation 19 (44,962) (272,915) 66,265 439,608 (429) (2.681)
Loss for the period (20,876,086) { !ZIT‘)DIOT?I (14,723,734) (5,81 4.620: (199,219) (125.643)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) (Rupees) (USS)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
"A’ class ordinary shares of Rs. 10 cach 20 (3.99) (2.58) (2.81) (1.15) (0.04) (0.03)
‘B’ class ordinary shares of Rs. 5 cach 20 (2.00) (1.29) (1.41) (0.58) (0.02) (0.02)
The annexed notes | to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information, ’b
4
}‘7/ O \“
Chief Executive Officer Directdr

i

1
f/;?a,”. %‘r

“tiiel Financial Officer

_____‘j(:'ll_igﬂlctut"c Officer
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Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the six months period ended June 30, 2016

Six months period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Restated) (Restated)

(Rupees in '000)
Loss for the period (20,876,086)  (12,790,077)  (14,723,734)  (5,814,620)

Other comprehensive income
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently
to unconsolidated profit and loss account

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of
available for sale investments 21,568 1,729 13,787 1,729

Total comprcehensive income for the period - loss (20.854.518) _ (12.788,348) (14,709,947) __ (5.812,891)

Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment has been reported in accordance with the requirements

of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in a separate account below equity and accordingly changes therein are reported dircctly
into equity.

The annexed notes I to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information.

Ay -
n AN

Chief Ex ivfpfﬁccr " Direltor
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Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-Audited)

For the six maniths period ended June 30, 2016

Six months period ended Six months period ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note (R in '000) (USS in "000)ewmmemmeemer
CASIH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 21 4,720,351 7,227,039 45,046 70,994
Profit on bank deposits reccived 36,716 16,821 k] 165
Finance costs paid (6,098,189) (6,405,800) (58,195) (62,926)
Taxes paid (56,751) (359,077) (542) (3.527)
Employee benefits paid (463,602) (390,930) (4,424) (3,840)
Long-term deposits and prepayments - net 2,581,016 (1,173,589) 24,630 (11.529)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activitics 719,541 (1,085,536) 6,865 (10,663)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equip (1,048,901) (1,091,277) (10,009) (10,720)
P'rocecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,106 316,837 11 3112
Net cash used in investing activities (1,047,795) (774,440) (9,998) (7.608)
CASII FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of advance against equily from the GoP - 3,974,371 - 39,042
Repayments of long-term financing (11,539,401) (5,783,417) (110,119) (56,813)
P Is from long-term fi ing 19,086,395 9,608,301 182,140 94,380
Receipts of advance from a subsidiary - 301,359 - 2,960
Repayments of short term borrowings - (1,524,162) - (14,972)
Repayment of term finance certificates (233,218) - (2,226) -
Repayments of obligations under finance lease - net (3,724,134) 5,006,454) (35,539) (50.064)
Net cash from financing activitics 3,589,642 1,479,998 34,256 14,539
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,261,388 (379,978) 31,123 (3,732)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (1,995,052) (2,572,418) (19,038) (25,270}
Effects of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents 420 (4,640) 4 (16)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,266,756 (2,957.036) 12,089 (29,048)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 7 5,291,092 2,167,429 50,493 21.292
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 13.2 (4,024,336) (5,124,465) (38,404) (50,340)
1,266,756 (2,957.036) 12,089 (29.048)
The annexed notes 1 to 25 form an integral part of these lidated fensed interim fi ial inf T
e
~ ChiefExeeutive A fficer 7 Direclor

Chitlﬁxccuyvc Officer
-H""--._._____,_,—-—

o

< Chief I#lnm:inl Officer
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Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited
Inc lidated Cond 1 Interim S of Changes in Equity (Un-Audited)
P the six months pericd ended Jume 30, 2006

Tasued, Advance Reaerves A Total
subscribed  against equity Capilial Revenue Unrealised Subtotsl losses
and pabd-up from reserves rELEFVES gnin on
share eapital  Government remensurement
of Pakistan of investments
(GaP)
(Rupees in '000)

Balance as st December 31, 2014 - as previously reported 28,779,674 19,591,065 2,501,008 1,719,674 22,775,869 27,056,581 (226,818 8%84) (151,411,564)
Effect of restptement - note 1.5 - - “ - (22.693,199)  (22,69,199) (8,077.241) (30,770,440)
Dalance as at December 31, 2014 - as restated 19, 2,501,038 1779674 82,670 4,363,382 (234,916,125)  (182,182,004)
Total comprehensive income for the six months period

ended June 30, 2015;
Loass for the period | - || - = = “ - = {12.790,077) (12.790,077)|
Other comprehensive income for the period - = - - 1,729 1,729 - L12%
Total comprehensive income for the period - loss - - Z - 1,729 1,729 (12.790,077) (12,788, 248)
Surplus en revaluation of property, plant and equipment

realised during the period on sccount of reduced

deprecintion charged thereon - nel of tax - - - - s - {12,457y (12457
Transactions with owners:
Advance against equity from GolP - 31974371 - - - - - 3974371
Balance as at Jume 30, 2015 - as restated 28.779.674 21365436 2301038 1770674 £4.300 365111 (2ATTIBGSH (191,008, 438)
Balance as m December 31, 2015 228,110 - 1,500,038 L779,674 23,909 474,621 (269,946,703} (213,226,972)
Toial comprehensive lncome for the slx months

period ended June 30, 2016:
Losa for the period . - | - || - - - 120,876,086)|[  (20,876,088)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - 21,568 21,568 - 21,568
Total comprehensive income for the period - boss - - - - 21,568 11,58 {20,876,086) (20,854.518)
Surplus en revaluation of property, plant and equipment

realized during the period on sccount of incremental

depreciation charged thereon - nel of tax - - - - - - 33,009 33,039
Balance as al June 30, 2016 L1 a‘h"! e et OLONS 1779674 115477 ’4& 182 290,789,730} (234,048, 45]

The snnexed n form an integral part of these unconsalidated condensed interim financial information.

N
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-Audited)
For the six months period ended June 30, 2016

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 Pakistan International Airlines Corporation (the Corporation) was incorporated on January 10, 1955
under the Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Ordinance, 1955, which was subsequently
repealed and replaced by the Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Act, 1956 (the Act). With
effect from April 19, 2016, the Corporation has been converted from a statutory corporation into a
public limited company by shares, Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited (the Company),
through Act no. XV of 2016 *The Pakistan International Airlines Corporation (Conversion) Act, 2016,
(the Conversion Act) approved by the Parliament of Pakistan. The Conversion Act has repealed the
Pakistan International Corporation Act, 1956 and the Corporation is now governed under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, According to the Conversion Act, all assets, rights, license, privileges and
benefits of which the Corporation was entitled were transferred to the Company and the Company has
assumed all liabilities and obligations of the Corporation. However, the management believes that in
substance there is no change except for the legal status and application of provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984.

The principal activity of the Company is to provide commercial air transportation, which includes
passenger, cargo and postal carriage services. Other activities of the Company include provision of
engineering and allied services. The head office of the Company is situated at PIA Building, Jinnah
International Airport, Karachi.

1.2 During the current period, the Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 20,876.086 million (June 30, 2015:
Rs. 12,790.077 million) resulting in accumulated losses of Rs. 290,789.750 million as of June 30, 2016
(December 31, 2015: Rs. 269,946.703 million). Further, as of June 30, 2016, current liabilities of the
Company exceeded its current assets by Rs. 186,228.703 million (December 31, 2015: Rs.

180,491.634 million). Furthermore, the Company has been unable to settle its financial obligations and
other statutory liabilities in time as disclosed in notes to these unconsolidated condensed interim
financial information.

The Government of Pakistan (GoP), being the majority sharcholder of the Company, had through its
finance division’s letter dated September 02, 2008 communicated that it would extend all maximum
support to maintain the Company’s going concern status. Accordingly, since then it has been extending
support to the Company through the following measures to ensure that the Company continues and
sustains in the long-term as a viable business entity:

- Reimbursement of financial charges on term finance and sukuk certificates payable by the
Company. In this respect, amounts aggregating to Rs. 11,276 million have been provided to the

Company towards equity since the year ended December 31, 2008;

- During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, the GoP provided long-term financing
aggregating to Rs. 8,000 million to meet working capital requirements of the Company;

- Issuance / renewal of guarantees to financial institutions, both local and foreign, so as to enable
the Company to raise / rollover funds; \&Q\lh’;‘
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- On July 03, 2012, the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet accorded
approval for extending the repayment period of the term finance certificates aggregating Rs.
12,790 million along with conversion of certain short term loans amounting to Rs. 20,700 million
into new term finance certificates which were converted during the year ended December 3 1.
2015.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company also presented a proposal for financing
support required along with its interim business plan to the ECC during its meeting held on February
26, 2013. The ECC approved the following financing support proposal subject to the condition that the
timeline will be fixed for repayment of loans and there will be quarterly monitoring of the Company’s
business plan by the Ministry of Finance:

- New loans / guarantees for repayment of loans amounting to Rs. 11,100 million becoming duc in
year 2013;

- Rollover / extension of GoP guarantees amounting to approximately Rs. 51,160 million:

- New guarantees against loans already taken on the basis of letter of comfort amounting to Rs.
13,500 million;

- Additional funding to provide fiscal space to the Company amounting to Rs. 12.000 million: and
- Funds of US$ 46 million for acquisition of narrow body aircraft on dry lease.

Consequent to the above approval, the GoP provided Rs. 11,758 million and Rs 2.945 million as
financial assistance to the Company to enable it to make payments, of loan installments. to overduc
vendors.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 the ECC in principle approved the following financial
measures for the Company:

- Issuance of GoP guarantees amount to Rs. 14,000 million enabling PIA for acquisition of loans
from different banks to cater immediate funding requirements;

- Issuance of GoP guarantees to the extent the Company pays its guaranteed loans;

- Funds of US$ 52 million for acquisition of aircraft on dry lease and immediately released
Rs. 1,297 million for this purpose.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the remaining amount of Rs. 3.974 million out of US$ 52
million was received by the Company. The Company issued 2.356.54 million shares of Rs 10 cach
amounting to Rs. 23,565.436 million to the GoP in lieu of advance against equity. However the legal
formalities for the said issuance are still in process.

During the period ended June 30, 2016, ECC in principle enhanced the GoP guarantee limit by
Rs. 5,000 million.

As at June 30, 2016, the Company is operating a fleet size of flect to a total of 37 aircraft with cleven
(11) 777, eleven (11) A320, four (04) A310, five (05) ATR72 and six (06) ATR42 aircraft. The
Company is also in the process of acquisition of more aircralt on dry lease for which tenders have been
floated for acquisition of four wide body and four narrow body aircraft.
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In addition to the above measures taken by the Company and the GoP, as instructed by the Board of
Directors, management is in the process of updating the Strategic Business Plan of the Company. The
objectives of the business plan, among other measures, include attaining fuel efficiency through fleet
modernization and optimum fleet deployment on network, enhancing revenues through additional
frequencies on high demand high yield routes, separation of the core airline business from non-core
activities and controlling costs. The business plan also seeks GoP’s support in terms of providing
necessary funding for recapitalization, acquisition of aircraft on dry lease, restructuring of existing
loans to reduce finance cost and issuance of GoP guarantees.

The GoP through Privatization Commission, has also initiated the process of restructuring the Company
leading to private sector participation in the core operations of the Company, and for this purpose a
consortium has been appointed as Financial Advisor. In view of the situation described above, material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. However, management believes that considering the mitigating factors set out in the preceding
paragraphs, the going concern assumption is appropriate and has, as such, prepared these
unconsolidated condensed interim financial information on a going concern basis.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 These unconsolidated condensed interim financial information of the Company for the six months
period ended June 30, 2016 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting which comprise the
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 - Interim Financial Reporting and provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). In case where requirements
differ, the provisions of or directives issued under the Ordinance have been followed.

2.2 These unconsolidated condensed interim financial information do not include all the information and
disclosures required in the annual financial statements, and therefore should be read in conjunction
with the Company's annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

2.3 The US $ amounts reported in the unconsolidated condensed interim balance sheet, unconsolidated
condensed interim profit and loss account and unconsolidated condensed interim cash flow statement
are stated as additional information, solely for the convenience of the users of these unconsolidated
condensed interim financial information. The US $ amounts in the unconsolidated condensed interim
balance sheet have been translated into US $ at the rate of Rs. 104.7307 = US $ | (December 31,
2015: Rs. 104.8715 =US $ 1). The US § amounts in unconsolidated condensed interim profit and loss
account and unconsolidated condensed interim cash flow statement have been translated into US § at
the rate of Rs. 104.7896 = US § 1 (June 30, 2015: Rs. 101.7978 = US $ 1).

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Significant Accounting Estimates, Judgements, Assumptions And Financial Risk Management:

The preparation of unconsolidated condensed interim financial information requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, however, actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing
from the period of revision.

AQUN
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Judgements and estimates made by the management in the preparation of these unconsolidated
condensed interim financial information are the same as those applied in the preparation of the annual
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015, except for
the changes in accounting estimates as noted in note 4.3.

32 The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in
the annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

3.3 New / revised standards, amendments (o approved accounting standards and new interpretations
which become effective during the six month period ended June 30, 2016:

There were certain amendments to the approved accounting standards and a new interpretation issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which became effective
during the period but are considered not to be relevant or have any material effect on the Company's
financial position and are, therefore, not stated in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements.

3.4 New / revised standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations
published but are not effective:

There are certain amendments to approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning after January 01, 2016 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Company's position and are, therefore, not stated in these unconsolidated
condensed interim financial information.

3.5 Restatement of comparatives and reclassifications

As stated in note 2.7 to the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015,
effective from December 1, 2014, the Company changed its accounting policy in relation to its
investments in subsidiaires from costs to “fair values’ and classified as available for sale investment in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ (IAS 39).

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the exercise to determine the fair values of its investments
in subsidiaries was not concluded due to practical difficulties. The management based on exercise
results considered that it is impracticable to determine the fair value of the investment in subsid iaries
due to unquoted investments with substantial accuracy as required by IAS 39 which states that fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As a result of this, the management
had reverted back to previous policy i.e. cost, and investment in subsidiaries are again carried at cost
less impairment, if any, with retrospective effect.

The above change had been corrected in accordance with the requirements of [AS-8, 'Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' in the unconsolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015 with retrospective effect. The effect of these on comparatives of
unconsolidated condensed interim financial information are as below:
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Effect on unconsolidated profit and loss account
Increase in deferred tax income

Effect on unconsolidated "other comprehensive income!
Reversal of loss on remeasurement of investment in subsidiarics
Impact of deferred tax on remeasurement of investment in subsidiaries

Total unconsolidated comprehensive income

Net effect to unconsolidated cquity

(1.221.825)

(302.323)

1,221.825

919,502

(302.323

June 30, 2015
(Un-Audited)

(Rupees)
Effect on loss per share
Increase in loss attributable to:
'A' class ordinary shares of Rs. 10 cach (0.23)
"B’ class ordinary shares of Rs. 3 each (0.13)

As stated in note 2.7 to the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31,2015, certain
reclassilications were made and accordingly the same has been reclassified in the unconsolidated
condensed interim profit and loss account for the period ended June 30. 2015 [or better presentation.
which are summarised below with their respective amounts:

June 30, 2015
(Un-Audited)
(Rupecs in "000)
From To

Administration expenses: Welfare and  Cost of services - Others: Welfare and
social security costs social security costs

1.01-1.5396

Administration expenses: Wellare and — Distribution costs: Wellare and social
I

social sceurity costs security costs security costs 10:.278

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Nowe {Rupees in "000)
Operating lxed assets A 4.2& 4.3
- owned 22,720,193 23.799.116
- leased 50,078,315 52.605.356
72,798,508 76.40:1.802
Capital work-in-progress 1,029,279 3
73,827,787 76.602.507
A7/ o T
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4.1 Included herein are the following additions / transfers / adjustments and deletions during the current

period:
Six months period ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015

(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
(Rupees in '000)
Additions / Transfers / Adjustments

Owned
Workshops and hangers 7,031 135
Renovation and improvements 50,500 8,582
Aircraft fleet - 824,382
Operating ground, catering, communication and meteorological
equipment 3,606 3,137
Engineering equipment and tools 30,246 2,979
Traffic equipment - 4,922
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 11,700 9,146
Motor transport 7,318 -
Office equipment 450 120
Computer and office automation 26,311 14,056
Precision engineering equipment 6,948 -
Other equipment 5,262 20,241
Capital spares 163,869 41,302
313,241 929,002
Leased aircraft fleet - 816,086
313,241 1,745,088
Deletions / write offs net book value / Adjustments
Owned
Buildings - on other land 39,408 -
Aircraft fleet 64,855 124,266
Operating ground, catering, communication and meteorological
equipment 405 -
Traffic equipment 168,520 -
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 9,885 36
Motor transport 670 1,598
Office equipment 106 -
Computer and office automation - 184
Other equipment 171,737 -
Capital spares 5,962 1,997
461,548 128,081

4.2 Asat December 31, 2015, the aircraft fleet included eight A-310 aircraft including spare engines which
were stated at revalued amount of Rs. 1,815.664 million on which an aggregate surplus of Rs. 27.165
million appearing in the surplus on revelation of fixed assets. %
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During the period ended June 30, 2016, four A-310 aircraft have been grounded / retired from operation
due to old aged and requirements of major improvements and modification. Accordingly, a loss of Rs.
618.705 million has been recorded in these unconsolidated condensed interim profit and loss account
which comprise of carrying value of four airframes of A-310 aircraft of Rs. 64.855 million and a release
of deficit from equity of Rs. 553.850 million, without taking its effects on related capital spares and stores
and spares. As a resull, as at June 30, 2016, the aircraft fleet included four A-310 aircraft including spare
engines at the carrying value of Rs. 1,977.797 million on which an aggregate surplus of Rs. 567.058
million is appearing in the surplus on revaluation of fixed assets. As at June 30, 2016, the carrying value

of related capital spares and stores and spares is Rs. 409.426 million and Rs. 599.722 million
respectively.

In order to keep remaining four aircraft flying beyond December 31, 2016, major investments and
modifications to the structure were needed which have not been considered feasible by the Company's
management due to their old age. Hence, it had been decided by the management subsequent to period
end to ground / retire from operation these remaining four A-310 aircraft. Accordingly, an international
tender was floated for these four A-310s in July 2016, however, no bids were received. Another
international tender was floated in November 2016 for which only single bid received for one A-310
(without engines) at Euros 47,500. Accordingly, one aircraft (A310, AP-BEQ) was transported to
Germany in November 2016 before the completion of formal bidding procedures. The inquiry in respect
of this transported aircraft has been initiated, the outcome of which is pending to date.

The management is of the view that the fair value of remaining four A-310 aircraft including spare
engines as at June 30, 2016 could not be determined in current circumstance as stated above. Therefore,
the management has not carried out any exercise to assess whether the remaining four A-310 aircraft
including spare engines, related capital spares and stores and spares are stated at their recoverable
amount as at June 30, 2016 in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard
(IAS 36) 'Impairment of Assets' and the Company's accounting policy for impairment and accordingly,

adjustment, if any, in this respect has not been made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial
information for the period ended June 30, 2016.

4.3 Changes in estimates

As a result of a revaluation exercise conducted by an independent valuer as of December 31, 2015, the
useful lives of aircraft fleet have been reassessed. In addition, the management has reassessed the residual
values of aircraft and related capital spares. These changes in accounting estimates have an impact on
depreciation expense for the current period. Had there been no change in the useful lives and residual
values of aircraft and related spares, depreciation expense pertaining to aircraft fleet and capital spares for
the current period would have been higher by Rs. 226.508 million, whereas the effect on future periods is

impracticable to ascertain considering the subsequent measurement of aircraft fleet under the revaluation
model and inherent uncertainties attached thereto.
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5. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in "000)
Deposits
Considered good
Aircrafl fleet lease deposits 5,006,960 5,695,518
Maintenance reserve 1,555,187 1,553,980
Engine maintenance 83,785 83,854
Rent - 68,875
Utilities - 266
Aircraft fuel - 17,644
Deposit to service providers 73,410 73,011
Guarantee deposit 5.1 - 1,792,784
Others - 41,895
6,719,342 9,327,827
Considered doubiful 315,197 189,461
Less: provision against doubtful deposits (315,197) (189,461)
6,719,342 9,327,827
Prepayments
Exposure fee to support financing 456,769 501,177
Less: current portion (233,701) (226,102)
223,068 275,075
6,942,410 9,602,902

5.1 This represents foreign currency deposit which has been maintained by a commercial bank on behalf of
the collection agent on the basis of agreement between the Company and the collection agent. The
deposit is due to be maturzd on October 27, 2016 and carries markup at a rate of 0.75% per annum.
Accordingly, the same has been classified as current assets in trade deposits and prepayments.

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good

Claims receivable 8,621 8,749
Excise duty 100,000 100,000
Sales tax receivable 6.1 5,077,788 5,217,908
Receivable from the GoP 6.2 616,135 470,040
Others 6.3 1,048,170 357,977
6,850,714 6,154,674
Considered doubtful 207,148 194,334
Less: provision for doubtful other receivables (207,148) (194,334)

6,850,714 6,154,674
/4?/ lund
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6.1

5.1

This includes sales tax lable. aggregating Rs. 4,965,094 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 4,965.094 million), r\:pr\:wnling.unadjuslcd portion ol
input tax under Sales Tax Act. 1990, The Company has filed application for refunds upto December 31, 2011, In response, A dd I1C ;

IR, LTU through a letter has interalia stated that as the Company 15 engaged in both d ic and | air travel, mpl..ll tax pmd_ls adjustahle
only against the domestic air travel serviees as no input tax adjustment is allowed against the international air travel services in terms of rule 41A(14)
of the Federal Excise Rules, 2005

The Company in consultation with its tax advisor believes that apportionment rule is not applicable in the subject case, interalia, al.ﬁrsl mstance, no
sales tax was required 1o be collected at the import stage on capital goods (spares / engines / aircraft) in view of the exemption available under eniry
No. 16 of SRO 575(1)/2006, which is applicable to the Company being registered as a Service Provider in the transportation business. The
management has represented before the FBR its view and subsequently no adverse inf has been i i on the matter. The

B is thereft ident than sales tax was not payable on such imports and the amounts collected from the Company at the import stage
shall be eventually recovered / adjusted.

This represents receivable in respect of charter revenue, maintenance and other charges

This includes receivable from supplier amounting to Rs. 841,081 million (December 31, 2015 Rs. 211,566 million) and receivable from Minhal

France S.A. - a sub-subsidiary compary, ing to Rs. 101,288 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 66.112 million).
CASH AND BANK BALANCES June 30, December 31,
2016 013
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in "000)
In hand 17,341 6,327

With banks

- In current accounts 71 2,716,828 2315747
- in deposit accounts T2k T3 2,556,923 319031

5,273,751 2.634.778
5.291.092 2,641,305
——m

This has been adjusted by an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,454,397 million (December 31, 2015: Rs 2,025,555 million), representing book overdralts
This has been adjusted by an aggregate amount of Rs. 3165 million {December 31, 2015: Rs. 323 528 million), representing book overdrais
These include resiricted balances amounting to Rs. 220 million {December 31,2015: Rs. 14.271 million).

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31
2016 2015 2016 005
(Un-Audited) (Audited) (Un-Audited) (Audited)

{No. of sharcs) {Rupecs in '000)

Authorised capital

Ordinary share capital

§,349,250,000 5.349.250,000 “A' class shares of Rs. 10 each 53,492,500 53,492 500
1.500,000 1.500.000 ‘B class shares of Rs. 5 each 7.500 7500
5.350,750,000 §.350.750.000 53,500,000 33,500,000
Preference share capital
50,000,000 30,000,000 Preference shares of Rs, 10 each 500,000 SO0000
5.400,750,000 5.400.750.000 54,000,000 34000000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Ordinary share capital
'A’ class shares of Rs. 10 each
2,642,351,957 2,642,351,957 Issued for consideration in cash 26,423,519 26423519
Issued for consideration other than cash
931,028 931,028 - for acquisition of shares 9310 9310
233,934,482 233,934,482 Issued as bonus shares 2,339,345 2,330,345
2,356,543,648 2,356,543.648 Issued against advance from GolP 23,565,436 23,565,416
§,233,761,115 5233761115 52,337,610 52.337.610
‘B’ class shares of Rs. § each
1,003,374 1,003,374 Issued for consideration in cash 5017 sm7
Issued for consideration other than cash
1,625 2,625 - for acquisition of shares 13 13
494,000 494,000 Issued as bonus shares 2470 2470
1,499,999 1,499,999 7.500 7500
5|135|26I|II4 5.235.261.114 52,345,110 52345110

As at June 30, 2016, the Gol* held 4,791,752,087 'A’ eluss ordinary shares and 1 462,515 'B' class ordinary shares (December 31,2015 4,791,752 087
‘A elass ordinary shares and 1,462,515 'B' class ordinary shares)
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9. LONG-TERM FINANCING

Financier Type of Facility Repayment Number June 30, December 31.
facility amount period of 2016 20 I 5
(million) instalments / (Un-Audited) {Audited)
Note maode (Rupees in "000)

Secured - from banking companies

Askari Bank Limited 9.2
Banklslami Pakistan Limited 0.3
(ransferred from KASB Bank Limited)

3.000 PKR 2017 -2019 36 monthly 3,000,000 3.000.000

1500 PKR  2019-2021 & quanerly 1,500,000 -

The Bank of Punjab 2 ce 5,000 PKR - 2016-2021 60 monthly 5,000,000 -
The Bank of | 9.2 Term finanee 5,000 PKR - 2016 -2021 60 monthly 4,750,000 o
Faysal Bank L 9.2 Term finance 2,000 PKR  2013-2016 36 monthly - JRR.ETO
Faysal Dank Limied 9'; f Term finance 2,000 PKR  2015-2018 12 quarterly 1,372,333 1.831.676
Faysal Bank Limited 9.2 Term finance 2,000 PKR 2016 -2019 12 quarterly 1,833,333 2,000,000
Faysal Bank Limited 9.2 Islamic Term
finance 1000 PKR  2017-2019 12 quarterly 1,000,000 1000000
Faysal Bank Limited 9.2 Term finance 4,000 PKR 2017 -2020 14 quarterly 4,000,000 -
National Bank ol Pakistan 9.5 Term finance 3,000 PKR 2016 -2019 36 monthly 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mational Bank of Pakistan 22 T 2175 PKR - 2018 -2020 12 quarterly 2,175,000 2.074.577
National Bank of Pakistan 9.2 2825 PKR  2018-2021 12 quarterly 2,825,000 -
NIB Bank Limited 9.2 Term finance 10,000 PKR  2015-2020 60 monthly 8,166,667 9,166,667
United Bank Limited 9.2 Term finance 5,000 PKR  2015-2020 54 monthly 4,259,259 4814815
United Bank Limited 9.2 Term finance 1,500 PKR  2016-2021 54 monthly 1,472,222 1500000
National Bank of Pakistan - Bahrain 9.2&  Syndicate 3 y ——
96  finance  '20USD 2013-2023 d0quanedy 4 inh5 1 9ssss)
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank 9.7 lslamic Term
linance 70.7USD  2016-2018 4 half vearly 4,725,138 3783813
Citibank. N.A. 9.8  Islamic Term 120 USD &
finance 36.73 AED 2014 -2016 33 monthly 2,064,225 4545499
Citibank, N.A, 9.9 ':]“nr:l'l‘&" 82USD  2006-2017 20hallyeady 517,995 890.477
Citibank, N.A. 910 Term finance 542 USD  2015-2018 8 quarterly 777,192 1.084.376
Citibank, Mashreq 9.0 Term finance  120USD  2016-2018 32 monthly 10,996,723 12,584,580
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Syndicate i |
Limited 2.12 Tinance 1375 USD 2004 -2017 33 monthly 3,054,645 5,680,510
Others - unsecured
Long-term loan - GoP 913 Term finance 8,000 PKR  2011-2020 16 half~yearly 8,000,000 8,000,000

86,303,355 77,301,250
Current maturity shown under current liabilitics

(27,331,365) (27.534.829)

58,971,990 49.766.421

9.1 Borrowings in PKR comprise of fixed and variable rate borrowings. Fixed rate borrowings carry markup at the rate of 10% (Decenber 31,
2015: 10%). whereas variable rate borrowings in PKR carry markup ranging from spread of’ 1.5% over | month KIBOR 10 2% over | month
KIBOR (December 31, 2015: spread of 1.5% over 1 month KIBOR 10 2% over | month KIBOR ). Borrowings in US$ comprise of fixed and
variable rate borrowings. Fixed rate b ings carry markup at the rate of 5,.28% (December 31, 2015: 5.28%) whereas variable rale
borrowings carry markup ranging from spread of 0.70% over 3 month LIBOR 1o 4.00% over | month LIBOR (December 31, 2015 0.7%
over 3 month LIBOR 1o 4.00% over | month LIBOR), Borrowings in AED carry variable markup with spread of 4% over 3 month EIBOR
(December 31, 2015: 4% over 3 month EIBOR )

9.2 The finances are secured by way of’ ditional and irr ble GoP g Tor an amount equivalent to the facility amount,

23 The facility is converted from short term loan to long term financing on Diminishing Musharakah basis. The finance is secured by way of licn
over Musharakah Asset amounting te Rs. 1,500 million and unconditivnal and irrevocable GoP guarantee for the facility amount

9.4 Principal amounting to Rs. 39 million due as at June 30, 2016 which has been paid by the Company during the extended period on July 11,
2016,

9.5

The finance was secured by Letter of Comfort from GoP, ranking charge over current and fixed asset of Company amounting to Rs 4,000
million inclusive of 25% margin; and lien and specific right to set ofT over all ivables in ¢ ion with the Company's sales routed
through collection account NBP Airport Branch, Karachi. However, as the Letter of Comfort has been replaced by Gol® guaranice, the
aforesaid ranking charge has been released by NBP,
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9.6 The following are the participating banks in this syndicated linance facility:

- National Bank ol Pakistan (NBP) « Bahrain; and
- Habib Bank Limited (HBL)

9.7 The finance is secured against ICIEC / GolP® g for loans ling at any given point of time,

9.8 The facility is obtained from um of financial institutions in which Citibank N.A. is the investment agent. The linance is secured by way
of collection routed through the offshore account maintained with Citibank N.A. London Branch

9.9 The finance is secured by way of: .
- Mortgage over each of the six ATR aircraft and two spares engines purchased, and
pean Credit Agencies / Gol? Gi

E
= E

9.10 The finance is secured against EXIM / GoP for loan Jing at any given point of time.

9.1 The finance is secured by way of collection routed through the offshore bank account maintained with Citi Mashreq,

9.12  The Syndicale finance has been obtained from a syndicate of i tonal banks and the lead arrangers are:

- Standard Chartered Bank - United Kingdom
= Mashregbank psc - United Arab Emirates

The finance is secured by first priority security over the collection account and facility service account; and legally enforceable assignments of
tickets sales collection for the UK sector through IATA with appropriate acknowledgments.

9.13  The Company has not paid any installment since due date of installment, i.¢. October 23, 2011, The over due principal and markup due as at
June 30, 2016 is Rs 4.562.50 million and Rs. 5.496.71 million, respectively. The over due principal amount is included in current maturity.

10. TERM FINANCE AND SUKKUK CERTIFICATES

Security  Repayment  Numberof  Mark-up June 30, December 31,

period installments 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) {Audited)
Note (Rupees in "000)
Term finance certificates 1.4 GoP 2014 - 2020 16 Quarterly 6 month
Guarantes KIBOR | 32,870,410 32870410
+1.25%
Term finance certificates (Zero Coupon) GoP 2014-2016 4 half-yearly - - 233218
CGuarantee
Sukuk certificates 10.2 GoP October Bullet 6 month
Guarantee 20,2019 KIBOR 6,800,000 6,800,000
+1.75%
39,670,410 39,903,628
Less: current maturity (10,272,000} (13.196.419)
29398410 _26707.200
1.1 E ic Coordination Ci iltee (ECC) on July 3, 2012 decided / approved the restructuring of these TFCs from various banks along with

the restructuring of certain short term borrowings of Rs. 20,700 million into new TFCs for a period of 6 years, with 2 years grace period on
the terms and conditions 1o be approved by Ministry of finance (the Ministry). On December 01, 2014, the Ministry approved the terms and
conditions of new TFCs, amounting Rs. 32,870 million, including the conversion of short term loan of Rs. 20,080 million on the terms,
applicable from February 20, 2014. Further, the Ministry also approved the issuance of a Zero Coupon Privately Placed Term Finance
Centificates (PPTFCs) of Rs. 960.661 million afer the pitalisation of markup | on previous PPTFC of Rs. 12,790 million, During the
vear ended December 31, 2015, the restructuring agreements of both PPTFCs were signed and Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

was approved as trustee of both PPTFCs, Principal repayment amounting to Rs. 2,054 million due as at June 30, 2016 has been paid by the
Company during extended period on August 31, 2016.

10.2  The Company had issued Gol® guaranteed privately placed Sukuk Certificates in financial year ended December 31, 2009. The principal
amount was payable afler grace period of two years in six equal hall yearly instalments, however, the Company had not made any principal
payments that were due until December 30, 2013, The Sukuk investors were requested to re-profile the principal repayment schedule along
with other terms of Sukuk Centificates, with the assistance of the Ministry. On December 30, 2013, the Sukuk agreement with Sukuk investors
was rescheduled by virtue of which the Company was required to pay the entire principal on October 20, 2014, However, on December 24,
2014, the Sukuk investors agreed to further extend the term of Sukuk Centificates for a period of further five years starting from October 20,
2014 and the Company will be required 1o pay the entire principal on October 20, 2019, The markup rate and security will remain unchanged
The Ministry has approved the restructuring and new agreement has been signed as at June 30, 2016, Accordingly, the same has been
classified as non-current liability.

/7
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11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)

Trade creditors
Goods 16,456,468 15,807,236
Services 5,449,824 4,322,860
Airport related charges 18,454,640 16,525,429

40,360,932 36,655,525

Accrued liabilities 11.1 6,740,379 4,900,439
Advance against transportation (unearned revenue) 12,153,237 10,864,375
Obligation for compensated absences 6,971,258 6,385,556
Unredeemed frequent flyer liabilities 744,031 744,008
Advances from customers 1,008,827 1,007,858
Payable to the employees' provident fund 11.2 10,190,087 10,470,475
Unclaimed dividend - Preference shares 8,493 8.493
Collection on behalf of others 29,707,022 24,608,025
Customs, federal excise duty and sales tax 3,575,149 2,855,999
Federal excise duty - International travel 8,657,663 7,811,194
Income tax deducted at source 876,907 1,327.034
Short-term deposits 896,285 859,715

121,890,270 108,498,696

11.1 This includes Rs. 96.214 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 62.806 million) payable to PIA Investments
Limited, a subsidiary company.

11.2  This represents amount deducted from employees on account of contribution to Provident Fund.
Company's own contribution and deductions from employees on account of loan recoveries on behalf of
Provident Fund which is payable to Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Provident Fund (PF) and
carry mark-up based on the discount rate announced by the State Bank of Pakistan, which could not be
paid to the PF within 15 days as required by Section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 due to the

liquidity constraints.

12. ACCRUED INTEREST

Mark-up / profit payable on:

- long-term financing 6,024,923 5,465,941
- term finance certificates 911,668 1,625,374
- sukuk certificates 227,524 432,216
- short-term borrowings 652,793 711,296
- provident fund 11.2 3,824,924 3,528,554
- advance from a subsidiary 247,985 201,729
11,889,817 11,965,110
‘7 w®
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13.1

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term loans - secured
Running finances under mark-up arrangements

Short-term loans - secured

Financier Security

Nove
From Banking Companies

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
GoP Guarantee, lien / specific right to
set-ofT over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karach

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
Ciol® Guarantee, lien / specific right to
set-ofT over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
Gol* Guarantee; lien / specific right to
set-off over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi

MNational Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
Gol* Guarantee, lien / specific right to
set-0fT over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
GoP Guarantee; lien / specific right to
set-ofl over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
GoP Guarantee; lien / specific right to
set-ofT over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airpont
Branch, Karachi

National Bank of Pakistan Unconditional irrevocable continuing
GoP Guarantee, lien / specific night to
set-oft over all recevables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi

National Bank of Pakistan u i | bl

GoP Guarantee, lien / specific right to
set-ofl over all receivables in
connection with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi
Banklslami Pakistan Limited 13.0.2 GolP Guarantee and also covered by
(transferred from KASE Bank Ist Pari Passu charge over receivables
Limited) with 25% margin
Habib Allied International 13.1.3  EURO receivables

Bank Limited - London

Facility
amount
{million)

5.000
PKR

5,000
PER

5.000
PKR

4,360
PKR

3,500
PKR

3,000
PR

2,000
PKR

PKR

1.500
PER

d&5
UsD

Nove

13.1
13.2

Expiry date

3l-Jul-16

31-Jul-16

3-Jul-16

3l-Jul-16

3-Jul-16

3l-Jul-16

3-Jul-16

31-Jul-16

13-May-15

Continuous

June 30,
2016
(Un-Audited)

December 31,

215

(Audited)

(Rupees in "000)

30,802,576 32,303,844
4,024,336 4,636,357
34,826,912 36,940,201
June 30, December 31
2016 2015
{Un-Audited) {Audited)

(Rupees in "000)

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

4,360,000

3,500,000

3,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

942,576

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

4,360,000

3,500,000

3,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1. 500,000

Q4380

TN

NCIA
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13.1.1

13.1.2

13.1.3

13.2

13.2.2

13.2.3

The borrowings in PKR carry mark-up with a spread of 0.9% to 1.5% over 3 month KIBOR (December 31, 2015: spread of 0.9% to 2.0% over 3
months KIBOR) The borrowings in foreign currency carry mark-up of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR {December 31, 2015: a spread of’ 3.5% over 3 months
LIBOR)

Loan liability has been transferred from KASB Bank Limited to Bank Islami Limited as per the approval of State Bank of Pakistan. The loan liability
transferred from short term 1o long term on Diminishing musharka basis.

The agreements of these borrowings have expired either during the year or subsequent 1o the year-end and the Company is currently in the process of
renewal of these loans with the financiers

Running finances under mark-up arrangements

Banks Security Facility Unavailed Expiry date June 30, December 31,
amount credit 016 2015
Note {million) {million) {Un-Audited) {Audined)
Note 13.2.2 (Rupees in "000)
Secured
The Bank of Punjab Ranking charge on present and future 550 550 30-Jun-16 - 503,869
stoeks and book debits of Mirpur PKR PER

Azad Jammu Kashmir (AJK) for Rs.
734 million includ 5% margin;
irmevocable undertaking to route all
collection in Mirpur, AJK from BOP

counter
Habib Bank Limited Hypothecation charge on all present 350 0.04 PKR 30-Sep-16 349,969 2R 496
and future spare parts, sccessories of PKR

airerafl assets or present and future
receivables of the company for Rs.
2,800 million including 25% margin
or s per SBP requirement, whichever
15 higher

National Bank of Pakistan First pan passu hypothecation charge 575 135 PKR 31-Jul-16 439,799 440,941
of Rs. 766.667 million on all present PKR
and future current assets with a
margin of 25%; lien and specific right
to set-of over receivables in
conneetion with sales routed through
collection account in NBP Airport
Branch, Karachi. Further, a
promissory note has been issued in
the name of NBF amounting to Rs
686 million payable on demand

United Bank Limited Hypothecation charge of Rs. 3,427 2,570 T2 PKR 31-Jul-16 2,497,499 2244436
million on all present and future PKR
stocks and spares and assignment of
receivables from Karachi and Lahore

Habib Allied 13.2.3  EURO receivables 3 0.03USD On Demand 310,030 314,853
Intemational usn
3,597,297 3.792,595
Un-secured
Habib American Bank 13.2.3 - 1.5 04 USD On Demand 112,847 109,661
usD
Citibank N.A 1323 - 3 - On Demand 314,192 34,615
usp
Citibank N.A 13.23 - 4 4 Temporary - 419,486
usp usp Line
4,024,336 4.636,357
2= :

The borrowings in PKR carry mark-up with a spread of 1.5% 0 2.5% over | month KIBOR {December 31, 2015: 1.5% o 2.0% over | month and 3
months KIBOR). Borrowings in USD comprise of fixed and variable rate borrowings, Fixed rate baorrowing carries mark-up at the rale of 3 25%
(December 31, 2015: 3.25% per annum) whereas variable rate borrowings carry mark-up with a spread of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR and 2% over Citi
Base Rate (December 31, 2015: spread of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR and 2% over Citi base Rate)

u led credit rep s the difli between the facility amount and the closing balance as at June 30, 2016

The agreements of these facility has ekpired subsequent to the vear end and the Company is currently in the process of renewal of the facility with the

AR

respective banks

PAKISTAN
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14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
14,1 Contingencies

There has been no material change in the status of contingencies as disclosed in notes 29.1 to the
annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, except for the
following;:

a) The Company is contesting several litigations mainly relating to suits filed against it for unlawful
termination of contracts, breach of contractual rights and obligations, non-performance of servicing
stipulations due to negligence or otherwise. The management is of the view that these cases have no
sound legal footing and it does not expect these contingencies to materialise. Accordingly, no
provision has been made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information against
these claims amounting to Rs.8,841.740 million (December 31, 2015: Rs.7,918.940 million).

b)  The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed the order and raised a demand of Rs.
24.086 million while disallowing the partial input tax claimed on the contention that the Company has
claimed additional input tax in the sales tax returns for the periods February 2014, March 2014 and
July 2014. The management has filed an appeal before DCIR against the said order. The matter is
pending for adjudication. The Company is confident that this matter will ultimately be decided in its
favour, hence no provision is made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information
in this respect.

¢€)  The Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) has been claiming excessive amounts from the Company which
mainly relates to non-acronautical charges comprising of land lease rent and the license fee. As at
June 30, 2016, the excessive amounts claimed by CAA are not acknowledged by the Company
aggregated to Rs. 9,429.076 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 8,642,635 million) including late
payment surcharge and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 6,120.59 million (December 31, 2015:
Rs. 4,976.653 million). In view of the understanding reached through a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) which was concluded in the meeting held on January 24, 2011 between the
representatives of the Company and CAA, the management does not accept the higher amounts being
claimed by CAA.

During the aforementioned meeting, the matter of chargeability of rates for non-aeronautical services
was amicably resolved whereby it was agreed that CAA shall charge rates as were decided in the
arbitration award of 1998. The MoU was signed in the form of minutes of the meeting, however
CAA has continued to charge higher rates for non-aeronautical services rather than those agreed by
virtue of the said MoU. However, the management maintains its position on the chargeability of rates
based on arbitration award of 1998 and the understanding (MoU) reached between the
representatives of CAA and the Company during January 2011,

Further, in relation to the aforementioned surcharge and interest payable, the management considered
that the same are not part of the Company’s agreement with CAA and accordingly in view of the
management such surcharge and interest payable shall never be paid by the Company. The Company
is considering to take up this matter again with the Aviation Division of Government of Pakistan for
resolution in the light of the previous understanding reached with CAA. Accordingly, no excessive
amount shall eventually become payable to CAA and therefore, no provision for the excessive
amount has been made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information,

d) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt amount to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2015: Rs.
903.317 million).

e)  Contingencies relating to income tax matters are disclosed in note 19.1.2.
O
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142 Commitments
a)  Commitments for capital expenditure amounted to Rs. 479.16 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 852.90 million).
b Outstanding letters of eredit amounted to Rs. 1,788.06 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 3,607.65 million),

¢} Oustanding letiers of guarantee amounted 1o Rs. 3,697.25 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 182.21 million).

d) The Company has entered into an agreement for purchase of aireraft, the remaining commitments of which aggregate 1o USD
1,527.904 million (December 31, 2015: USD 1,527.904 million) equivalent to Rs. 160,018.455 million (December 31, 2015 Rs
160,233.584 million) based on catalogue prices. The Company has not made certain payments on ils due dates as per the tenms of
the agreement. Therelore, the execution of the agreement is yet to be made

(e

The amount of future payments in operating lease arrangement relating to aircraft 777-200 ER, 737-800, A320-232 and A320-200
and the period in which these payments will become due is as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) {Audited)
(Rupees in "000)
Not later than one year 6,893,375 7,575,917
Later than one year but not later than five years 30,060,851 29,980,859
Later than five years 7,579,921 6,559,685
44,534,147 44,116,961
15, REVENUE - NET
Six months period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) {Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
B et LT 112 T 11111 e —— ilies
Passenger 38,415,857 42,452,199 18,185,738 18,435,322
Cargo 1,456,681 1831191 736,976 1,016,106
Excess baggage 370,899 389,285 165,797 145,010
Charter services 312,793 201,359 166,902 102,803
Engineering services 591,178 219102 169,853 74,713
Handling and related services 167,516 274,169 71,386 130,717
Mail 134,493 119,006 70,349 61,850
Others 773,995 667,055 411,091 31442
423223.-"2 46,153,366 19,978,092 20,277,963
16. COST OF SERVICES - OTHERS
Salaries, wages and allowanees 7,567,679 5,592,802 4,072,135 2,769,476
Welfare and social security costs 1,222,443 1,112,873 675,847 1,098,714
Retirement benefits 989,715 1,052,141 505,798 718,675
Compensated absences 421,705 196,169 210,834 130,654
Legal and professional charges 16,758 27,759 5917 17.371
Stores and spares consumed 738,225 479,550 512,871 258,518
Mauntenance and overhaul 5,397,402 2,001,470 3 415,521 1,272,421
Flight equipment rental 3,106,313 4,236,592 1,701,281 2,452,453
Landing and handling 7,102,341 6,058,401 3,733,994 3,066,925
PPassenger services 1,560,141 1.300,838 823,310 675137
Crew layover 1,336,314 1,191,757 725,509 508.674
StafT raining 32,801 51,350 17,668 35854
Unilities 17,300 7448 10,161 1,742
Communication 1,744,411 1,543,876 1,071,361 1,525,258
Insurance 505,394 551,175 225,996 284,088
Rent, rates and taxes 702,362 413,872 548,989 270,203
Printing and stationery 76,887 103,163 34,423 57,861
Depreciation 3441544 2,935,699 1,931,106 1,373,518
Amortisation of intangibles 710 10,631 {3,470) 10,198
Others 16.1 689,375 585479 26,076 368,900
36.(1(-'}& 29,453,045 20:‘%45.32? 16,897,285

16.1  This includes an amount of Rs. 250.035 million (June 30, 2015: Nil) pertaining to late retum fees and customer induced damages in respeet

of engineering and W %“
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17. OTHER PROVISIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS

Six months period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
Narte e e | RUPEES 0 "000) me———
Property, plant and equipment
- loss on disposal of aircrafl flect 4.2 64,855 - 64,855 =
= deficit released from surplus on aircralt disposed of1’ 4.2 553,850 36,187 553,850 36,187
- other assets written of 1’ 292,653 - 292,653 -
911,358 36,187 911,358 36,187
Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares 73407 654,650 72,715 634,451
Provision for doubtful debis 222,189 330,837 72,189 330,837
Provision against doubtful advances 6,192 167,540 6,192 167,540
Provision against doubtful deposits 125,736 - 125,736 -
Provision / (reversal) against CWIP 2,650 - (415,715) -
Provision against other receivable 12,814 - 12,814 -
Late pavment surcharge on fuel 1,009,878 1,294,656 591,513 1,294,457
Others 27,916 33,104 27,916 33104
2,392,140 2,516,984 1,404,718 2,516,586
18, FINANCE COSTS
Mark-up on:
- long-term financing 2,575,339 1,723,515 1,354,861 957,628
- term finance certificates 1,275,318 1,706,429 621,314 1,369,336
- short-term borrowings 1,328,980 1,957,646 638,873 325,179
- advance from a subsidiary 46,563 37.517 23,384 37517
5,226,200 5,425,107 2,638,432 2,689,660
Profit on sukuk centificates 279,564 371,369 138,172 171,170
Interest on liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 164,950 227,726 81,985 108,892
i ing income on deposi (53,346) (7,281) (49.997) {7,281
Interest on provident fund 296,370 374,904 122,441 180,722
Arrang agency and i fiee 195,505 269,629 113,464 201,489
Amortisation of prepaid exposure fee 128,392 121,794 59,124 75,580
Bank charges, guarantee commission and
other related charges 25,257 19,140 11,559 8915
6,262,892 6,802,388 3,115,180 3.429.153
19 TAXATION
Six months period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
(Restated) (Resteaed)
Note (Rupees in "000) e —
Current 19.1 211,117 230,767 99,890 101,390
Deferred 19.2 (166,155) 42,148 (166,155) (540.998)
44,962 272915 (66,265) (439.608)

19.1  Current

19,11 In the view of tax loss for the year, provision for minimum taxation has been made in accordance with section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001,

Minimum tax rate under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (1.7.0.) for Tax Year 2015 is 1% of turnover, however the rate for
Company is 0.5% in accordance with the Division IX of First Schedule of 1.T.0. 2001,

19.1.2 There has been no change in the status of contingencies as disclosed in note 37.1 to the annual lidated fi ial for the
year ended December 31, 2015, except for the following:

a)  During the period ended June 30, 2016, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has issued an amended orders under
section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax year 2010 and raised a demand of Rs. 143,075 million,
disallowing the depreciation claimed on leased aircralt and other provisions of Rs. 12,810 million. The Company has filed appeal
before ACIR against the said order, however, the matter is still pending for adjudication. The Company is confident that this issue will
ultimately be decided in its favour and the amount will be recovered,

s -
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19.2

20.

20.1
20.2

2L

b)  Tax department of Afghanistan has audited income tax returmm of PIACL Kabul for the tax year 2006 to 2013 and raised demand of
AFN 66 million (equivalent to Rs. 101.059 million) as corporate tax along with penalty of AFN 144 million (equivalent to Rs. 220,493
million) on the contentions that the Company has not declared international sales in their tax returns. The Company has paid AFN 40
million (equivalent to Rs. 61.248 million) under protest and filed an appeal in Commercial Court in Kabul, Afghanistan which is
pending for adjudication. The management believes that the case will be decided in the favor of Company and no further payment will
be required. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information in this regard.

Deferred

Deferred tax eredits:
Accelerated tax depreciation
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax debits:
Unused tax losses
Provisions for liabilities and 1o write down other assels

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss for the period (Rupees in '000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
Loss per share attributable to:

‘A’ class ordinary share (Rupees)

‘B’ class ordinary share (Rupees)

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
{Un-Audited) (Audited)
(Rupees in '000)

16,346,763 16,581,741
(700,777) (852.773)

15,645,986 15,728,968
(7,203,540) (7,934,116)
8,442,446 (7.794,852)
(15,645,986) (15,728,96%)

Six months period ended Quarter ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

(Restated) (Restared)

(Rupees in '000)

(20,876,086) (12,790.077) (14,723,734) (5.814.620)

5234511117 _4.951.04.071 _ 5.234511,117 _5.003.722.041
(3.99) (2.58) (2.81) (1.15)
(2.00) (1.29) {141 (0.58)

The impact of ‘advance against equity has been taken into weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in previous years

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2016 and 2015,

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net
A [ adj ofi pibl

Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares
Pravision for doubtful debts

Property, plant and equipment written ofT
Deficit released on write off of aircrafl
Provision against doubtful advances

Reversal of provision against other receivables
Provision for employee benefits

Finance cost

Unrealised exchange (gain) / loss

Profit on bank deposits

Working capital changes

Increase in stores and spares

Decrease in trade debts

Increase in advances

| in trade dey and prepayments
Increase in other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash gencrated from operations

¥

Six months period ended

June 30, June 30,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

(Rupees in "000)

(20,831,124) (12,517,162)
3,457,986 2,945,894
69,999 (188,756)
30,501 11,191
73,407 654,650
222,189 330,837
292,653 -
553,850 36,187
6,192 167,540
12,814 -
2,193,855 2,180,037
6,262,892 6,802,388
(T0,439) 464,235
(36,716) (16,821)
(7,761,941) 870,220
(97,016) (4,334)
3,134,805 2,938,463
(23,362) (137.807)
(2,629,153) (1,292,895)
(708,854) (1,253,787)
12,805,872 6,107,179
12,482,292 6,356,819
4,720,351 7,227,039
\ aw&'
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22.  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of subsidiaries, profit oriented state-controlled entities, directors, key
management personnel and employee benefit funds. The Company in the normal course of business
carries out transactions with various related parties. The transactions with related parties, other than
those relating to issuance of tickets at concessional rates to employees and directors according to the
terms of employment / regulations and those not mentioned elsewhere in these unconsolidated
condensed interim financial information are as follows:

Un-Audited
Six months period ended
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015
(Rupees in "000)

Skyrooms (Private) Limited - Subsidiary

Payments made against in-transit passengers 116,799 177,577

Advances extended 1,833 1,891
PIA Investments Limited - Subsidiary

Management fee expense 32,547 37,197

Finance cost on advance 46,563 37,517

Advance received - 301,363
Minhal France S.A. - Sub-subsidiary

Management fee income 34,511 39,457

Abacus Distribution Systems Pakistan
(Private) Limited - Subsidiary

Charges in respect of courier services 82 -
Retirement funds

Contribution to Provident Fund and others 1,821,426 204,505

Interest on overdue balance of provident fund 295,698 374,904

Profit oriented state-controlled entities -
common ownership

Purchase of fuel 4,808,431 5,441,326

Insurance premium 501,728 511,778

Late payment interest 1,009,878 1,294,656

Finance costs 2,289,858 2,826,953

Airport related charges 6,385,285 3,353,217
GoP - Major sharcholder

Finance costs 398,904 396,712

Advance against equity from GoP - 3,974,371

Hajj revenue - 1,435,806
Key management personnel

Salaries, wages and other benefits 75,972 124,048

22.1  The Company's sales of transportation services to subsidiaries, associates, directors and key management
personnel are not determinable.

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES
23.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and price risk). credit risk and liquidity risk.

?/ R
— HALF YEARLY REPORT 2016 F_



These unconsolidated condensed interim financial information do not include all financial risk
management information and disclosures which are required in the annual financial statements and
should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual financial statements as at December 31, 2015.

There have been no changes in any risk g policies since the year end.

132  Fair value estimation

As at June 30, 2016, Company'’s all assets and liabilitics are carricd at cost except for those mentioned
below:

a)  The Company's leaschold land, buildings on leaschold land and airflect are stated at revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any;

b)  The Company classifics long-term investments in listed companies measured in the balance sheet at
fair values; and

¢)  Thecarrying value of all financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at other than
cost in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information approximate their fair values.

24.  GENERAL
24.1  Non adjusting cvents afler balance sheet date

On December 07, 2016, one of the aircraft (ATR-42) of the Company bearing tail number AP-BHO,
operating on Flight No. PK - 661, was crashed near Havelian Tehsil, Abbottabad. As at June 30, 2016,
the written down value and aggregate surplus in equity of this aircraft is Rs. 1,027.184 million and Rs.
427.567 million, respectively. Investigations for the identification of the reasons for the crash are still in
process. Substantial recovery of the insurance claim for the damage has been received by the Company.
No adjustment is necessary in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial information in this
regard,

25.  DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial information were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on _ May 10,2017 |
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PAKISTAN INTERMNATIONAL AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSD INTERIM BALANCE SHEET (UN-AUDITED)
AS AT JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS
NOMN CURRENT ASSETS

Fixod assats
- Property, plant and equipment
- Intangitles

Lang-term investmants

Receivable from Centre Hotel
Leng-term koans and advances
Long-term deposits and prepayments.
Total nen-current assats

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

Trade debts

Short-term loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments
Cther receivables

Short-term investmants

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued. subscribed and paid-up share capital

Reserves

Accumulated losses

Attributable to the Holding company®s shareholders
Non-controlling interest

TOTAL EQUITY

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment- nat
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Leng-term financing

Term finance and sukuk certificates

Liabilites against assets subject io finance laase

Long-term deposits

Deferred taxation

Deferred iabidies

Total non current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Accrued interest

Pravision for taxation

Short-term borrowings

Current matuities of.

- Long-term financing

- Term finance and sukuk cenificates

- Liabiities against assets subject o finance lease
Total currant Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Conti and

The annexed notes 1 n integral part of these

.@. PAKISTAN
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June 30, Decembaer 31, June 30, December 31,
2018 2015 2016 2015
{Un-Audited) {Audited) {Un-Audited) {Auditad)
Note Rupees in "000 US$ in ‘000
4 135,633,245 138,098 487 1,295,067 1316835
3,468 68T 3,450,204 33,120 33,281
139,101,932 141,588,691 1,328,187 1,350,116
186 46. 164,897 1,780 1572
791,265 792,329 7.555 7.555
624 - 6 -
7958515 10,723,347 75,990 102,252
148,028,799 153,269,264 1,413,519 1,461,495
3,092,446 29,488
9870517 64,120
1580917 15,075
3130518 29 851
5 6,445,893
208,066
B
35009615 32.106.683 306,155
183,048 414 185,375,947 1,747,801 1,767,649
52345110 52,345,110 499,807 459,136
4,417,052 4,395,484 42175 41,913
(282,208,566} 261,532,285} (2,694,612) (2.493.835)
(225,446,404) (204,791,891) (2,152,630) (1,952.788)
1,658,631 1,657,742 15,837 15,807
(223,787,773) (203,133,949} (2,136,792) (1,926.979)
31,269,102 30,949,467 298,567 265,118
7 73,582,038 64,362,044 702,583 613,723
8 29,398,410 26.707,209 280,705 254 668
9,470,295 13218479 80,425 126,045
83,240 99,611 795 850
20,824,557 20,450,267 198,839 195,003
28, L 24862040 | 248,268 | 237,07
159,359,770 149,699,650 1,561,750 1,427,458
9 124,130,444 110,533,748 1,185,235 1,053,892
11,668,028 11,790,141 111,410 112,424
386,650 222,263 3,692 215
10 34,826,012 36,940,201 332,538 352,243
27,552,906 27 963,991 263,083 266,650
10,272,000 13,196.419 98,080 125,834
7,370,375 7.204 018 70,375 68 594
216,207,315 207,860,779 2,064,412 1,982,052
375,567,085 357, 560.428 3,626,162 3,409,510
183,048,414 185,375,947 1,747 801 1.767 649
"
interim financial
Diract
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PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSD INTERIM PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

REVENUE - net

Cost of services

Aircraft fuel

Others

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other provisions and adjustments

Exchange loss - net
Other operating income

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the period

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Holding compary
Nor-controlling interest

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Loss attributabile to:

- "’ dass Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

- "B ddass Ordinary shares of Rs 5 each

12

@

17

17

The annexed notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these consclidated condensed interim financial statements.

Chief Execufige Officer

Six Months period Ended Quarter ended Six Months period Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
[{V] ited) (Un-Audited) {Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Rupees in ‘000 US$in '000
48,163,323 52,470,880 23,399,986 23588842 459619 515,442
(12,094,256) (14,996.408) (6,967,398) (7,447.912) (115,415) (147,316)
(39,696,309) (32,465.558) (21,770,886 {18 485,449) (378,819) (318.922
(51,790,564) (47 461,967) (28,738,283) 25,533,381) (494,234) (466,238)
(3,627,241) 5008913 (5,338,297) (1.944,519) (34,615) 49,205
(2,935,172) (2670.973) (1,504,902) (1.292,127) (28,016) (26,238)
(5,344,692) (4,707,453 (2,777,999) (1,903,817) (51,004) (46,243)
(2,392,140) (2,516,5984) (1,823,083) (2,516,785) (22,828) (24,725)
(92,728) (501,281)| (108,221) 184,254 (885) (4,924)
311,331 75,558 116,479 (4,581) 2971 742
(10,454,001) (10,321,131} (6,097,725) (5.533,066) (99,762) (101,389)
(14,081,242) (5312.218) (11,436,022) (7.477,585) (134,376) (52,184)
(6,479,539) (7,034,583 (3,223,655) (3.545,534) (61,834) (69,103)
(20,560,780) (12,246,801} (14,659,676) (11,023,119) {196,210) (121,287)
(147,651) (415,287) (10,088) (256,084) (1,408) (4,080)
im ‘!9! ml It g ?ﬁz gﬁt l1 4&.75;] (11,278 203) !12?&1 2} {1 2; ES}
(20,709,320) (12.766,748) (14,674,314) (11,285.430) (197.628) (125.413)
B39 4,660 4,550 6,287 8 46
(20,708,432) {12,762,088) (14,669,765) (11,279,203) (197,619) (125,366)
Rupees uss
(3.96) (258) (2.80) (2.23) (0.04) (0.03)
(1.98) {1.29) {1.40) (1.12) 0.02 (0.01)
Director

by
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PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Six month period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited)  (Un-Audited)  (Un-Audited)  (Un-Audited)
(Restated) (Restated)
Rupees in '000—-——-—
Loss for the period (20,708,432) (12,762,088) (14,669,765) (11,279,203)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated profit and loss account

Unrealised loss on re-measurement of 21,568 1,729 21,568 1,729
available for sale investments
Total comprehensive income for the period - loss (20,686,864) (12,760,359) (14,648,197) (11,277,474)

Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of operating fixed assets has been reported in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in a separate account below equity and accordingly changes therein are reported directly into equity.

The annexed notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

ﬂ;/‘
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PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 18
Profit on bank deposits received

Finance costs paid

Taxes paid

Employee benefis paid

Long-term deposits and prepayments - net

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets
Currency translation difference

Long term loans and advances

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance against equity

Repayment of long-term financing

Proceeds from long-term financing

Long term deposit - net

Repayment of term finance certificates

Short tarm borrowing - net

Repayment of obligations under finance lease - net
Net cash generated from financing activities

Increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 10

The annexed notes 1 to 22 form an integral pant of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

“._ “Chief Executi  Officer

| ll ?}L
N\ chief Execuli\f?/Ofﬁcer

s TR

Six Months period Ended Six Months period Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
Rupees in 000 US$ in "000-=-meeees
5,350,644 8,681,549 51,060 85,282
38,716 16,821 350 165
(6,601,652) (6,677,713} (62,999) (65.598)
(178,467) (496,644) {1,703) (4,878)
(468,963) (391,875) (4,475) (3,850)
2,764,832 (1,227,313) 26,385 {12,056)
903,110 (95,174) 8,618 (936)
(1,393,660) (1,091,279) (13,300) (10,720)
351,323 316,836 3,353 3,112
- (253,565) - (2,490)
- (127,843) - 11,256)
(1,042,337) (1,155,850) (9,947) (11,354)
- 3,974,371 - 39,042
(11,977,081) (5,902 465) (114,296) (57,982)
19,086,395 9,608,301 182,140 94,386
= 4,138 . 41
(233,218) . (2,226) 3
- {1,523,869) - (14,970)
(3,581,825) (5,096,455) (34,181) {50,064)
329421 1,064,021 31,437 10,453
3,155,044 (187,004) 30,108 (1.837)
2,988,885 1,855,315 28,523 18,225
6,143,929 1,668,311 58,631 16,388
10,168,265 6,792,776 97,035 66,728
(4,024,336) (5,124,465) (38,404) 150,340)
6,143,929 1,668,311 58,631 16,388
Direcfor
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PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENT (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The "Group™ ists of Pakistan Ajrlines Holding company, i.e. the Helding pany, its idiaries and an

Pakistan International Airlines Holding company

P: [ Alrlines Corp on (the Holding Company) was incorporated on January 10, 1955 under the Pakistan Interational Airlines Corporation
Ordinance, 1955, which was subsequently and rep by the Pakistan Internaticnal Airines Corporation Act, 1956 (the Act). With effect from Apnl 19,
2016, the Corporation has been d from a i ion into a public limited Holding Company by shares, Pakistan Intemational Airines Corporation

Limited (the Holding Company) through Act no. XV of 2016 The Pakstan International Alines Corporation (Conversion) Act, 2016'(the Conversion Act) approved by
the Pariament of Pakistan The Conversion Act has repealed the Pakistan Intemational Corporation Act, 1956 and the Corporation is now govemed under the
Ce 1984, ding to the C: ion Act, all assets, rights, license, privileges and benefits of which the Corporation was entitled were
hansferled to the Holding Company and the Holding Company has assumed all labllmes and obligations of the Corporation. However, the management believes that
in substance there is no change except for the legal status and of pi of the Companies Ordi , 1884

The principal activity of the Holding Company s o prm'lde wmmercnal ar transportation, which includes passenger, cargo and postal camiage services. Other
activities of the Holding C: include provi of eng g and aled services. The head office of the Holding Company is situated at PIA Building, Jinnah
International Awport, Karachi

Subsidiaries

PIA Investments Limited (PIAIL) was incorporated on September 10, 1977 in Sharjah, United Arab Emirates, as a limited liability, The Holding Ccmpany unﬁer a

decree issued by HH, The Ruler of Sharjah and s curmently (egnshered in British Virgin Islands. Dunng 1986 PIAIL was registered under Ir

Cnmpamee Ordinance, 1984 {now BVI B de ) Act,(2012) as a Holding Company limited by shares, The principal activites are to camy
i as p of and in puqects lelaled te construction, development and operation of hotels, motels and restaurants throughout the world

The Holding Gompanys controling interest in PIAIL is 100% (December 2015: 100%). Following are the details of PIAIL's subsidianes:

Location Nature of Effective hip Effective P
business and voting power of and voting power of
PIAIL (%) the Holding Company
(%)

Netherlands - See note (B)
. Roosevelt Hotel Holding Company, N.V. (RHC) Antilles Tk
. RHS operating LLC Luxembourg See note (B) 100 100

Minhal France (Curacac) N.V.
* [Formery Minhal France (Curacac) M. V] Luxembourg See nate (B) 100 100

e Minhal France BV Netheriands See note (B) 100 100

e MnhalFrance SA (MFSA) France Crvmer,of Sere % 90
o Hotel, Paris

«  PIA Fuel Management Limited E'::”;ﬂd‘:’g'" See note (B) 100 100

s PIA Aviation Limited (PAL) E‘I :': m":’g'" See note (B) 100 100

. Avant Hotels (Private) Limited Pakistan See naote (C) 625 625

Note (A): Roosevelt Hotel Holding Company N. V. (RHC) is the intermediary Holding Company and a sole member of RHC Operating LLC, a Helding Company

which owns the Roosevelt Holel. In 2004, to comply with the req of loan , RHC ferred the net og g assets of the Hotel to RHC Operating LLC

Note (B): Dunng the year ended December 31, 2010, the Minhal France (Curacao) N. V. was o L g lting in its change of name to Minhal
France Sarl

PIAIL has been consolidated in these financial on the basis of its audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30,
2016.

Skyrooms (Private) Limited (SRL) was incorporated on May 20, 1975 in Pakistan as a private limited Holding Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984
SRL runs and manages ‘Airport Hotel, Karachi. SRL is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company.
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The subsidianes of the Holding Company, PIA Holding COrrwny (Prmﬂel Limited, PIA Shaver Poultry Breeding Farms (Private) Limited and PIA Hotel
Limited, had applied under the ‘Easy Exit Scheme' d by the and Exch G ion of Pakistan (the SECP) for voluntary winding up. Assets
and liabiities of these subsidiaries were taken over by the Holding Company. and, accordingly, not consolidated in these financial statements.

Special Purpose Entities (SPE) formed for acquining aireraft have not been consoldated in these financial statements as the share Holdng Company, controling
interest, risk and rewards of SPE rests with the trustees' representing foreign banks.

Abacus Distribution Systems Pakistan (Private) Limited (Abacus) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 12, 2004 as a privatle Hn!dm Company kmited by
shares under the C Ord; 1984. The d office of Abacus is situated al Karachi Abacus markets and d
system which incorporates a software package that p Vanous i ing real time airline seal reservation, schedules, boolnnss for a vanety of air, car
and hotel services, automated ticketing and fare displays. The Holding Company's interest in Abacus is 70% which will increase to 75% over a penod of nine years
ending in year 2014, Abacus has been conschdated on the basis of its unaudited financial statements as the same Is nol considered 1o be material lo these
consolidated financial statements.

Associate

Minhal Incorporated (Minhal), Sharjah was incorporated on January 1, 1977 in Sharjah, United Arab Emirates as a limited kability Holding Company and is currently
reqlslered in British Virgin Islands. The principal activites of Minhal are 1o carry on as and the of projects related to consiruction,
and op of hatets, and clubs throug’ the world. The Holding Company’s interest in the Holding Company is 40%.

During the current period, the Holding Company incumed a net loss of Rs. 20,708.432 milion (June 30, 2015 : Rs 12,762 088 million) resuling in accumulated
losses of Rs. 282,208.567 milion as of June 30, 2016 (December 31, 2015 Rs. 261,532 285 milkon). Further, as of June 30, 2016, current liabilities of the Holding
Company exceeded its cumrent assets by Rs. 181,197,700 milien {December 31, 2015 Rs. 175,754.096 million). Furthermore, the Holding Company has been
unable to settle its financial obligations and other statutory iabiities in time as disclosed in noles to these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

The Government of Pakistan (GoP), being the majority shareholder of the Holding Company, had through its finance division’s letter dated September 02, 2008
communicated that it would extend all maximum support to maintain the Holding Company's going concem status. Accordingly, since then it has been extending
support 1o the Holding Company through the following measures o ensure thal # (the Holding Company) continues and sustains in the leng-term as a viable
business entity:

Reimbursement of financial charges on term finance and sukuk cerlificales payable by the Holding Company. In this respect, amounts aggregating to Rs
11,276 million have been provided to the Holding Holding Company towards equity since the year ended December 31, 2008;

During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2010, the GoP has provided long-term financing aggregating to Rs 8,000 milion to meet working capdal
requirements of the Holding Company;

! renewal of to financial bath local and foreign, so as lo enable the Holding Company to raise / rollover funds; and

- ©On July 03, 2012, the jic C ion C: ittee (ECC) of the Cabinet ded approval for the period of the term finance
certificates aggregating Rs.12,790 millien along with conversion of certain shor term loans amounting to Rs. 20,700 mnhon into new term finance certificates
which were converted during the year ended December 31, 2015.

During the year ended Dec 31, 2013, the Holding Company presented a pmposul for financing support required along with its interim business plan to the ECC at its
meeting held on February 26, 2013, The ECC approved the following g support prop subject to the ition that the timedine will be fixed for repayment
of loans and there will be quarterly monitonng of the Holding Company's busmess plan by the Ministry of Finance:

New loans / for of loans g to Rs. 11,100 million becoming due in year 2013.

Rollover [ ion of GoP g ing o Rs. 51,180 million;

MNew guarantees agamnst kans already taken on the basis of letter of comfort amounting to Rs. 13,500 million;
Additional funding to provide fiscal space to the Holding Holding Company amounting to Rs. 12,000 mion; and
Funds of USS 46 milion for acquisibon of narrow body aircraft on dry lease.

Consequent fo the above approval, the GoP provided Rs. 11,758 milion and Rs 2,945 million as financial assistance to the Holding Company fo enable it to make
payments, of loan installments, to overdue vendors

During the year ended December 31, 2014 the ECC in principle approved the following financial measures for the Holding Company:

Issuance of GoP guarantees amount to Rs. 14,000 milkon enabling PIA for acquisition of loans from different banks to cater immediate funding requirements;
Issuance of GoP guarantees fo the extent the Holding Company pays its guaranteed bans;

Funds of US$ 52 million for acquisition of arcrafis on dry lease and immediately released Rs. 1,297 million for this purpose.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the remaining amount of Rs. 3,974 millon out of US$ 52 milion was recerved by the Holding Company. The Holding
Company issued 2,356.54 millicon shares of Rs 10 each amounting to Rs. 23.565.436 milion to the GoP in beu of advance against equity. However the legal
formalities for the said issuance are stil in process.

During the period ended June 30, 2016, ECC in principle enhanced the GoP guarantee imit by Rs. 5,000 milion.

Issuance of GoP guarantees amount to Rs. 14,000 milkon enabling PIA for acquisition of lnansfrom different banks to cater immediate funding requirements;

As at June 30, 2016 the Holding Company is operating a fleet size of fleet o a total of 37 aircrafi with eleven (11) 777, eleven (11) A320, four (04) A310, five (05)
ATRTZ and six (06) ATR42 aircrafts. The Holding Company is also in the process of acquisition of more aircraft on dry lease and tenders have been floated for
acquistion of four wide body and four narrow body aircraft,
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In adddtion to the above measures taken by the Holding Company and the GoP, as instructed by the Board of Directors, management is in the process of updating
the Strategic Business Plan of the Holding Company. The objectives of the business plan, among other measures, include attaining fuel efficiency through fleet
modemization and optimum fleet deployment on network, through on high demand high yield routes, separation of the
core airline business from non-core activities and controlling wsls The business plan also seeks GoP's support in terms of providing necessary funding for
recapitalization, acquisiion of aircraft on dry lease, restructuring of existing loans to reduce finance cost and issuance of GoP guarantees.

The GoP through Privatization Commission, has also initiated the process of restructuring the Holding Company leading to private sector participation in the core
operations of the Holding Company, and for this purpose a consortium has been appointed as Financial Advisor. In view of the sifuation described above, material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Helding Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. However, management believes that r.onsk!enng
the mitigating factors set out in the preceding paragraphs, the going concem assumption is appropnate and has, as such, prep these

mterim financial statements on a going concern basis.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated condensed interim ﬁnanaal s1a|emenls of the Holding Company for the six months period ended June 30, 2016 have been prepared in
d with the requi of as apy in Pakistan for intenm financial reporting which comprise the Intemational

Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 - Interim Fmanml porting and [ ions of and ives issued under the C ies Ordi 1984 (the O In case

where requirements differ, the provisions of or directives issued under the Ordinance have been followed

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in the annual financial statements, and
therefore should be read in conjunction with the Holding Company's annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The US § amounts reported in the consolidated conuenseu interim balance sheet, consoldated condensed interim profit and loss account and consolidated
condensed intenim cash flow it are stated as additi ion, solely for the b of the users of these consolidated condensed interim financial
sfatements. The US § amounts in the consolidaled condensed inlerim balance sheet have been translated info US $ at the rate of Rs. 104.7307 = US § 1
(December 31, 2015: Rs. 1048715 = US § 1). The US § amounts in consolidated condensed interim profit and loss account and consolidated condensed interim
cash flow statement have been translated into US $ at the rate of Rs. 104.7896 = US § 1 (June 30, 2016: Rs. 101.7978 =US § 1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Signifi A o Eeti Tud, A

] ptions And Financial Risk Management:

The p of I d o d interim financial requires I+l to make | and p that affect the
appllca‘m of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilibes, income and expenses, hnwe\ret aclual results may differ from these estimates,

and | are luated and are based on hlsloncal expenence and other Iadua's including expectation of future events that are

bebeved to be under the Revision to o] are recog| prosp y g from the period of revision.
and estimates made by the in the ion of these interim financial statements are the same as those
applied in the prep of the annual financal of the Holding Company for the year ended December 31, 2015, except for the changes in

accounting estimates as noted in note 4.2,

The Holding Company’s financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015,

New | revised ! d to app i ing dards and new interp ions which become effective during the six month period
ended June 30, 2016:
There were certain dmenis fo the app and a new infery ion issued by the Financial

p
Committee (IFRIC) which became effective tBunng the period but are considered not to be relevant or have any material effect on the Holding Company’s position
and are, therefore, not d in these densed interim financial statements

New | revised | d to app | ing dards and new interp i blished but are not effecti

There are certan dards that are y for g peniods beginning after January 1, 2016 but are considered not
1o be relevant or will not have any eagnmcanl effect on me Holding Company's posmon and are, therefore, not stated in 1hese consolidated condensed interim
financial statements.

As stated in note 2.8 to the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, effective from December 31,2015, the Holding Company changed its
accounting policy in relation to its investments n subsidiaires from costs to 'fair values' and classified as available for sale in with
Accounting Standard 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’ (IAS 39), effective from December 1, 2014,

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the exercise to determine the fair valies of its in was not due to practical difficulties.

The management based on exercise results d that it is imp ble 1o ine the fair value of the investment in subsidiaries due to unquoted
with y as required by IAS 39 which states that fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o transfer a

Eability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the measurement date. As a result of this, the management had reverled back to previous policy i.e

cost, and investment in subsidiaries are again camed at cost less impai , if any, with p effect

The above change was n with the req of 1AS-8, * g Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors’ in the

consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 with retrospectve effect. The effect of these on comparalives are as below:
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June 30
2015

(Un-Audited)
(Rupees in "000)

Effect on consolidated profit and loss account

Increase in deferred tax income (1,221.825)

Effect on lidated "other P income’

R I of loss on it of i in idi

Impact of deferred tax on of in idiari 919,502

Total consolidated comprehensive income (302,323)

Net effect to consolidated equity (302.323)

June 30,
2015
(Un-Audited)
{Rupees in "000)

Effect on loss per share

Increase in loss attributable to:
'A’ class ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
'B' class ordinary shares of Rs, 5 each

As stated in note 2.7 to the annual fnamlal stalemonls for the year ended December 31, 2015, certain reclassifications were made and accordingly the same
has been reclassified in the i s d interim profit and loss account for the period ended June 30, 2015 for better presentationwhich are
summarised below with their respective amounts:

2015
(Un-Audited)
(Rupees in "000)
From To
Administration expenses: Welfare and Cost of services - Others: Welfare and 1,014,586
soclal security costs soclal security costs
Administration expenses: Welfare and Distribution costs: Welfare and social
social security costs security costs security costs 104,278
June 30, December 31
2016 2015
Note (Un-Audited) {Audited)
Rupees in '000
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Qperating fixed assels 4142843 134,422,495 137,737,718
Capital work-in-progress 1,210,750 360,789
135,633,245 138,098 487
4.1 Include herein are the following additions / transfer and deletion during current pericd
June 30, June 30
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
Rupees in '000
Additi 1T fers [ Adj
Owned
Buildings on lease hold land - -
Warkshops and hangers 7,031 135
Renovation and improvements 50,500 8,582
Ajrcraft fleet / engines overhauling - 524,382
Meteorological equipment 3,608 3137
Engineering equipment and tools 30,739 2979
Traffic equipment . 4,922
Fumiture, fixtures and fittings 14,736 9,146
Mator Transport 7,318 -
Office aquipment 450 120
Computer and office automation 26,311 14,056
Precision engineering equipment 6,948 -
Other equipment 5,262 20,241
Capital spares 163,869 41,302
316,770 929,002
Leased - aircraft fleet / engines overhauling
Engines overhauling - 516,086
316,170 1 735,088
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June 30, June 30
2018 2015

Rupees in 000 ——

Deletions [ write off net book value

Owned

Buildings on leasehold land 39,408 -
Aircraft fleet 64,855 124,266
Operating ground, catering, ication and logh

equipment 405 -
Traffic equipment 168,520 -
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 9,885 36
Motor transport 670 1,598
Office equipment 106

Computer and office automation - 184
Other equipment 171,737

Capital spares 5,962 1,997

A6ATE 128061

4.2 As at December 31, 2015, the aircraft fleet included eight A-310 aircrafts including spare engines which were stated at revalued amount of Rs. 1,815664
millien en which an aggregate surplus of Rs. 27.165 million appearing in the surplus en revelation of fixed assets.

Durmg the penod ended June 30 2016, four A-310 aircraft have been grounded / retired from operanon due to cld aged and requirements of major
i a loss of Rs. 618.705 million has been in these interim profit and loss account
whlch comprises or carmying value of four alrﬁamss A-310 aircraft of Rs. 64.855 million a of release of deficit from equity of Rs. 553.850 million, withoul taking
its effects on related capital spares and stores and spares. As a result, as at June 30, 2016, the aircraft fleet included four A-210 aircraft including spares
engines at the carrying value of Rs. 1,977.797 million on which an aggregate surplus of Rs. 567.058 million is appearing in the surplus on revaluation of fixed
assets. As at June 30, 2016, the carrying value of related capital spares and stores and spares is Rs. 409.426 million and Rs. 539.722 million respectively.

In order to keep remaining four aircraft flying beyond December, 31 2016 major investment and modifications to the structure were needed which have not been
considered feasible by the Company's management due to their old age. Hence it had been decided by the management subsequent to period end to ground /
retire from operation these remaining four A-310 aircraft.

Accordingly, in order to fetch a good market price, an international tender was floated for these four A-310 which appeared in July 31, 2016 for bid opening on
August 31, 2016. However, no bids were received. Another international tender was floated in November 2016 for which only single bid received for one A-310
(without engines) at Euro 47,500, Accordingly, one aircraft A-310, AP-BEQ was transported on November 25, 2016 before the completion of formal bidding
procedures. The inquiry in respect of this aircraft has been initiated, the outcome of which is pending o date.

The management is of the view that the fair value of remaining four A-310 aircrafts including spares engines as at June 30, 2016 could not be determined in
current circumstance as stated above. Therefore, the management has not camried oul any exercise to assess that whether remaining four A-310 aircrafts
mclucllng spares englnes lelaled capnal spares and swlea and spares are stated at their recoverable amount as ar ber 30, 2016 in with the
of 36) of Assets' and the Company's pohcy for impai and fingl!
adjustment, if any, in this respect has not been made in these consolidated condensed interim financial information N)( the period ended June 30, 2016.

4.3 Change in Estimates

As aresull of a Eexercise by an indep valuer as of December 31, 2015, the useful lives of aircraft fleet have been reassessed. In
addition, the management has reassessed the residual values of aircraft and related capital spares. These changes in accounting estimates have an impact on
depreciation expense for the curent pericd. Had there been no change in the useful lives and residual values of aircraft and related spares, depreciation
expense pertaining to anrcral! ﬂeel and capital spares for the curment pericd would have been higher by Rs. 226.508 million, whereas the effect on future periods
is impracticable to g the i fieet under the revaluation model and inherent uncertainties attached therelo,

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
Note (v ) ( )
Rupees in ‘000 ———

5 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good

Claims receivable 8621 8,749
Excise duty 100,000 100,000
Sales lax receivable 51 5,077,788 5,217,908
Rental income 189,602 189,857
Receivable from GoP 52 616,135 470,040
Cthers 1,412,135 459,339

7,404,281 6,445,893
Considered doubtful | 207,148 | 194,334
Less: provision for doubtful other receivables 207,148 (194,334

?Mﬂ£1 B.“S.SB&

5.1 This includes sales tax refundable, aggregating Rs 4,965.094 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 4,965.094 million), represemlng unadjusled portion of input tax
under Sales Tax Act, 1990. The Corporation has filed applncauon fer refunds upto Dy b 31 2011. In resp IR, LTU through a
letter has interalia stated that as the C: is engaged in both d ic and i ional air travel, input tax paid is ad;ustahls only against the domestic

air travel services as no input tax adjustment is allowed against the international air travel services in terms of rule 41A{14)of the Federal Excise Rules, 2005.

The Helding Company in consultation with its tax advisor believes that apportionment rule is not applicable in the subject case, interalia, at first instance, no
sales tax was required to be collected at the import stage on capital goods (spares [ engines / aircraft) in view of the e:smpllon a\rarlable under entry No. 16 of

SRO 575(1)/2006, which is applicable to the Holding Company being registered as a Service Pravider in the The has
represented before the FBR its view and subsequently no adverse infarence has been communicated on the matter. The is tharef: i
that sales tax was not payable on such imports and the amounts collected from the Holding Company at the import stage shall be eventually recovered /
adjusted.

5.2 This represents receivable in respect of charter revenue, maintenance and other charges.
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June 30, December 31,
2018 2015
{Un-Audited) {Audited)

& CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees in '000

In hand 20,493 24,594
In transit 29,287 8871
49,780 33,465
With banks:
- In current accounts 2,995,247
- In savings accounts 7,123,238 4 BB8 301
10,118,485 7,501,777

10, 085265 7625242
This has been adjusted by an aggregate amount of Rs. 1,454 397 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 2,025.555 million), representing bank overdrafts.

This has been adjusted by an aggregate amount of Rs. 3.165 millicn (December 31, 2015 Rs. 323.528 million), representing bank overdrafts.

These include restricted balances amounting to Rs. 220 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 14.271 million).

7 LONG-TERM FINANCING

Financier Type of facility Facility Repayment Number of June 30, December 31,
amount period instalments!  Note 2018 2015
{million) Mode (Un-Audited) {Audited)

Secured - from erensneeees RUpEES i 000 —ooeeeeeee

Banking Companies

Askari Bank Limited TermFinance PKR 3000 2017-2019 36 Monthly 72 3,000,000 3,000,000

Banklslami Pakistan Limited
(fransferred from KASB Bank

Limited) Islamic Term finance  PKR 1500 2019-2021 8 Quarterly 73 1,500,000
Bank of Punjab TermFinance PKR 5000 2016-2021 B0 Monthly 7.2 4,750,000
Bank of Punjab TermFinance PKR 5000 2016-2021 B0 Manthly 7.2 5,000,000
Citi Mashreq TernFinance Uss120 2016 - 2018 32monthly  7.11 10,896,723 12,584 580
Citibank N.A TermFinance Uss542 2015-2018 B Quarterly 710 777,192 1,084,376
Citibank, N_A DemandFinance Us s82 2006 - 2017 20 half yearly 7.9 517,995 B90,477
Islamic Term Us 120 &

Citibank, N.A Finance AED 38 73 2014 - 2016 33 monthly 78 2,064,226 4,545 499
Faysal Bank Limited TermFinance FKR 2,000 2013 - 2018 36 monthly 7.2 - 388,870
Faysal Bank Limited TernFinance PKR 2000 2016-2019 12 Quarterly 72 1,833,333 2,000,000
Faysal Bank Limited Islamic Term finance  PKR 1000 2017-2019 12 Quarterly 7.2 1,000,000 1,000,000
Faysal Bank Limited TernFinance PKR 2000 2015 - 2018 12 Quarterly 74 1,372,333 1,831,676
Faysal Bank Limited TermFinance PKR 4000 2017 - 2020 14 Quarterly 72 4,000,000
National Bank Limited Terrfinance PKR 3000 2016-2019 36 Monthly 75 3,000,000 3,000,000
Hationat Bankof Pakistan - Syndicate Finance  US$ 120 2013 - 2023 a0 Quarterty ' 2.8 11,813,623 11,955,351
Bahrain 76
National Bank Limited F;ll::ear;';E PKR 2175 2018-2020 12 Quarterly 72 2,175,000 2,074,577
National Bank Limited TermFinance PKR 2825 2018 - 2021 12 Quarterly 72 2,825,000

i TernFinance 9,166,667
NIB Bank Limited PKR 10000 2015-2020 B0 Monthly 7.2 8,166,667
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank Islamic Term Finance  US $70.7 2016-2018 4 half yearly 77 4,725,138 3,783.813
flt::lz:rd Chartered Bank Syndicate Finance US$1375 2014-2017 33 Monthly 712 3,054,645 5,680,540
uBL TermFinance PKR 1500 2016- 2021 54 monthly 72 1,472,222 1,500,000
uBL TermFinance PKR 5000 2015-2020 54 monthly 72 4,269,269 4,814 815
Others - unsecured
Long term loan - GoP Term PKR 8000 2011 - 2020 16 half yearly 7.1 8,000,000 8,000,000

Finance 86,303,355 77,301,250
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Financler Type of facility Facility  Number of Repayment June 30, December 31,

amount  instaliments period 2018 2018
imillion} | Mode iUn-Audited) {Audited)
= Rupees in 000 ———
Balance brought forward 86,303,355 77,301,250
PIAIL
Hang Kong Shanghal 28.857 i
Barking Corporation Loan Eo Variable 2004-2017 576,370 583,878
JP Morgan Chase Loan 140 USD Variable 20112016 14,255,219 14,440,907
101,134,944 92,326,035
Current maturity shown under current liabilities {27,562,906) (27.963.991)
73,582,038 64,262 044

Borrowings in PKR comprises of fived and variable rate borrowings. Fixed rale borrowings cammy markup at the rate of 10% (2015 10%), whereas variable rate borrowings in
PKR carry markup ranging from spread of 1.5% over 1 month KIBOR to 2% over 1 month KIBOR (2015 spread of 1.5% over 1 month KIBOR 1o 1.75% over 6 month KIBOR).
Borrowings in USS comprises of fixed and variable rate bormowings. Fixed rate borrowings carry markup al the rate of 5.28% (2015: 5.28%) whereas variable rate borrowings
camy markup ranging from spread of 0.70% over 3 month LIBOR o 4.00% over 1 month LIBOR (2014: 4% over 1 month LIBOR to 4.25% over 3 month LIBOR), Bomowings in
AED carmy variable markup with spread of 4% over 3 month EIBOR (2015: 4% over 1 month EIBOR and 3.75% over 3 months EIBOR).

The finances are secured by way of i and GoP for an amount edq to the facility amount.

The facility is converted from short term loan to long term financing on Diminishing Musharakah basis. The finance is secured by way of henover Musharakah Asset amounting
to Rs. 1,500 milion and it and i GoP for the facility amount.

Principal amounting to Rs. 39 million due as al June 30, 2018 which has been paid by the Holding Company during the extended period on July 11, 2016

The finance was secured by Letter of Comfort from GoP, ranking charge over current and fixed asset of Holding Company amounting 1o Rs 4,000 million inclusive of 25%
margin: and lien and specific right to set off over all recaivables in connection with the Holding Company's sales routed through collection account NBP Alrport Branch, Karachi,
However, as the Letter of Comfort has been replaced by GoP guarantee, the aforesaid ranking charge has been released by NBP,

The following are the participating banks in this syndicated finance facility:

National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) - Bahrain; and
Habib Bank Limited (HBL)

Ihe finance is secured against ICIEC / GoP guarantee for loans outstanding a1 any given point of time.

The facility is obtained from consortium of financial institutions in which Citibank N.A. is the investment agent. The finance is secured by way of collection routed through the
affshore account maintained with Citibank N_A. London Branch

The finance is secured by way oft
- Mortgage over each of the six ATR aircraft and two spares engines purchased, and
- European Credit Agencies / GoP Guarantee.

The finance 1s secured against EXIM / GoP guarantee for loan outstanding at any given point of time,
The finance is secured by way of collection rowted through the offshere bank account maintained with Citi Mashreq,
The Syndicate finance has been obtained from a syndicate of international banks and the lead armangers are:

- Standard Chartered Bank - United Kingdom
- Mashregbank psc - United Arab Emirates

The finance is secured by first prionity security over the collection account and facility service account; and legally oftickets sales collection for the UK

sector through IATA with appropriate acknowledgments.

The Holding Holding Company has not paid any installment since due date of installment, i October 23, 2011, The over due principal and markup due as atfune 30, 2006 is Rs
4,562,350 million and Rs. 5,4%96.71 million, respectively. The over due principal amount is incheded in current maturity,

TERM FINANCE AND SUKUK CERTIFICATES

Security Note Repayment Number of Mark-up June 30, December 31
period Installment 2016 2018
(Un-Audited) {Audited)
sseeeeeeees Rupees in 000

Term financa GoP Guarantee 8.1 2014 - 2020 16 & manth KIBQOR 32,870,410 32870410

cerificates Quartery +1.25%

Term finance cerificates (Zero Coupon)  GoP Guarantes 2014-2016 4 half-yearty = = 233218

October

Sukuk B manth KIBOR

cortificates GoP Guarantee B2 20, 2019 Bullet +1.75% 6,800,000 6,800,000
39,670,410 39,903,628

Less: Current maturity GoP Guarantee (10,272,000} (13.196.419)

29,396,410 26,707,209
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Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) on July 3, 2012 decided / approved the restructuring of these TFCs from various banks along with
the restructuring of certain short term borrowings of Rs. 20,700 million into new TFCs for a period of 6 years, with 2 years grace period onthe
terms and conditions to be approved by Ministry of finance (the Ministry). On December 01, 2014, the Ministry approved the terms and
conditions of new TFCs, amounting Rs. 32 870 million, including the conversion of short term loan of Rs. 20,080 million on the terms. applicable
from February 20, 2014. Further, the Ministry also approved the issuance of a Zero Coupon Privately Placed Term Finance Certificates
(PPTFCs) of Rs. 960,661 million after the capitalisation of markup accrued on previous PPTFC of Rs. 12,790 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2015, the restructuring agreements of both PPTFCs were signed and Pak Brunei Investment Holding Company Limitedwas
approved as trustee of both PPTFCs. Principal repayment amounting to Rs. 2,054 million due as at June 30, 2016 has been paid by the
Holding Company during extended period on August 31, 2016,

The Holding Company had issued GoP guaranteed privately placed Sukuk Certificates in financial year ended December 31, 2009. The
principalamount was payable after grace period of two years in six equal half yearly instalments, however, the Holding Company had not made
any principalpayments that were due until December 30, 2013. The Sukuk investors were requested to re-profile the principal repayment
schedule along with other terms of Sukuk Certificates, with the assistance of the Ministry. On December 30, 2013, the Sukuk agreement with
Sukuk investors was rescheduled by virtue of which the Holding Company was required to pay the entire principal on October 20, 2014.
However, on December 24,2014, the Sukuk investors agreed to further extend the term of Sukuk Certificates for a period of further five years
starting from October 20,2014 and the Holding Company will be required to pay the entire principal on October 20, 2019. The markup rate and
security will remain unchanged.The Ministry has approved the restructuring and new agreement has been signed as at June 30, 2016.
Accordingly, the same has been classified as non-current liability.

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
Mote (Un-Audited) (Audited)

meneneees RUpPEES iN 000 —eevmeeee
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors
Goods 16,893,130 15,807,236
Services 5,449,824 4,332,596
Airport related charges 18,454,640 16,525,429
Others 8,940 377,862

40,806,534 37043122

Other Liabilities
Accrued liabilities 7,957,709 ©,088,566
A against portation (uneamed ] 12,153,237 10,864,375
Obligation for p Holding company 6,971,258 6,385,556
Unredeemed frequent flyer liabilities 744,031 744,008
Advance from customers 1,014,163 1.007.858
Amount due to Associate undertaking 290,310 189,096
Advances and deposits 151,513 219,085
Earmest money 583 999
Payable to Holding company employees’ provident fund 9.1 10,190,087 10,470,475
Unclaimed dividend - Pref shares 8,493 8,493
Federal excise duty - International Travel 8,657,663 7.811,194
Collection on behalf of others 29,707,022 24,608,025
Customs, federal excise duty & Sales tax 3,675,148 2,855,999
Income tax deducted at source 878,826 1,328,163
Sales tax payable 2,587 5,303
Bed tax 694 682
Payable to EOBISESSI 582 565
Short-term deposits 896,285 858,715
Others 123,717 42,468

124,130,444 110,533,748
This amount deducted from on account of t Fund,C

from employees on account of loan recoveries on behalf of Provident Fund which is payable to Pakistan |

s own contribution and deduchcns

1al Airlines Corps 1

Provident Fund (PF) and carry mark-up based on the discount rate announced by the State Bank of Pakistan, which could not bepaid to the PF
within 15 days as required by Section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 due to the liquidity constraints.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured

Short-term loans - secured 101 30,802,576 32,303,844

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 102 4,024 336 4,636,357
34,826,912 36,940,201
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10.1  Short-term loans - secured

Financier Security Facility Expiry date Note June 30, December 31,
amount 2016 2015
(million)
(Un-Audited) (Audited)

From Banking Companies Rupees in ‘000
Bank Islami GoP Guarantee and also covered by 1st Pari 500 13-May-15 10.1.2 - 500,000
Limited Passu charge over receivables with 25% margin PKR
(transferred from
KASE bank Ltd)
Bank Islami GoP Guarantee and also covered by 1st Pari 1,000  13-May-15 10.1.2 - 1,000,000
Limited Passu charge over receivables with 25% margin PKR
(transferred from
KASE bank Ltd)
Habib Allied EURD receivables 4&5 Continuous 10.1.3 942,576 943 844
International Bank uso
Limited - London
National Bank of U ditional | bl inuing GoP 5,000 31-Jul-16 5,000,000 5,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien | specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBF Airport

Branch, Karachi.
National Bank Of u itional bl inuing GoP 5,000 31-Jul-16 5,000,000 5,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee: lien / specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi.
MNational Bank Of U ditional bl inui GoP 5,000 31-Jul-16 5,000,000 5,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien / specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi.
National Bank Of  Unconditional | bl i GoP 4,380  31-Jul-16 4,360,000 4,360,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien / specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi.
Mational Bank Of Ui ditional | bl inui GoP 3,500 31-Jul-16 3,500,000 3,500,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien / specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi.
Mational Bank Of Unconditional  irrevocable continuing GoP 31-Jul-16 3,000,000 3,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien / specific right to set-off over all

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBPF Airport

Branch, Karachi.
Mational Bank Of U ditional i bl inui GoP 2,000 31-Jul-16 2,000,000 2,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien | specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBPF Airport

Branch, Karachi.
Mational Bank of Unconditional  irevocable continuing GoP 2,000 31-Jul-16 2,000,000 2,000,000
Pakistan Guarantee; lien / specific right to set-off over all PKR

receivables in connection with sales routed

through collection account in NBP Airport

Branch, Karachi.

30,802,576 32,303,844

e e e

10.1,1 The borrowings in PKR carry mark-up with a spread of 0.9% to 1.5% over 3 month KIBOR (December 31, 2015: spread of 0.9% to 2.0% over 3
months KIBOR). The borrowings in foreign currency carry mark-up of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR (December 31, 2015: a spread of 3.5% over 3
months LIBOR).

10.1.2 Loan liability has been transferred from KASE Bank Limited to Bank Islami Limited as per the approval of State Bank of Pakistan. The loan liability
transferred from short term to long term on Diminishing musharka basis,

10.1.3 The ag its of these ings have expired either during the year or subsequent to the year-end and the Company is currently in the process
of renewal of these loans with the financiers.
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10.2 Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Banks Note  Facility Unavailed Expiry June 30, December 31,
amount credit date 2016 2015
(million)  (million)
(un-Audited) (Audited)
Rupees in 000 -
Secured
The Bank of Ranking charge on present and future 550 550 PKR  30-Jun-16 - 503,869
Punjab stocks and bock debts of Mirpur Azad PKR
Jammu Kashmir (AJK) for PKR 734
million including 25% margin; imevocable
undertaking to route all collection in
Mirpur, AJK from BOP counter.
Habib Bank Hypothecation charge on all present and 350 0.04 PKR  30-Sep-16 349,969 288,496
Limited future spare parts, accessories of PKR
aircraft assets or present and future
receivables of the company for PKR
2,800 million including 25% margin or as
per SBP requirement, whichever is
higher.
Mational Bank First pari passu hypothecation charge of 575 135 PKR 31-Jul-18 439,799 440,941
of Pakistan PKR 766.667 million on all present and PKR
future current assets with a margin of
25%; lien and specific right to set-off
over receivables in connection with
sales routed through collection account
in NBP Airport Branch, Karachi. Further,
a promissory note has been issued in
the name of NEP amounting to Rs. 686
million payable on demand.
United Bank Hypothecation charge of PKR 3427 2,570 T2 PKR 31-Jul-16 2,497,499 2244436
Limited million on all present and future stocks PKR
- Karachi and spares and assignment of
receivables from Karachi and Lahore.
Habib Allied EURO receivables 10.23 3 0.03USD On Demand 310,030 314,853
International usb
Bank Limited -
Londeon
3,697,297 3,792,595
Un-secured
Habib American - 15 04 On 112,847 109,661
Bank 10.23 USD USD Demand
Citibank N.A. - 10.2.1 3 On 314,192 314,615
< usD Demand
Citibank N.A. - i 4 4 Temporary - 419,486
023 ysp uSD Line
4,024,336 4,636,357

10.2.1 The borrowings in PKR carry mark-up with a spread of 1.5% to 2.5% over 1 month KIBOR {December 31, 2015: 1.5% to 2.0% over 1 month and
3 months KIBOR). Borowings in USD comprise of fixed and variable rate borrowings. Fixed rate borowing carries mark-up at the rate of
3.25%j(December 31, 2015: 3.25% per annum) whereas variable rate borrowings carry mark-up with a spread of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR and
2% over CitiBase Rate (December 31, 2015: spread of 3.5% over 3 month LIBOR and 2% over Citi base Rate).

10.22  Unavailed credit represents the difference between the facility amount and the closing balance as at June 30, 2016.

10.23  The agreements of these facility has expired subsequent to the year end and the Holding Company is currently in the process of renewal of the
facility with therespective banks.

T < | ————
International Airlines



1 CONTINGENGIES AND COMMITMENTS

1.1 Contingencies

There has been no material change in the status of contingencies as disclosed in notes 29.1 to the annual i financial its for
the year ended December 31, 2015, except for thefollowing:

a) The Holding company is contesting several litigations mainly relating to suits filed against it for un!awrul termination of contracts, breach of

contractual rights and oblig non-perf: of servicing stipulations due to negli or ott . The is of the view that
these cases ha\rs nosound legal footing and it does not expect these contingencies to materialise. Accordingly, no provision has been made in
these .l d interim ial information against these claims amounting to Rs.8,841.740 million (December 31, 2015:

Rs.7,918.940 million).

b) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed the order and raised a demand of Rs.24.086 million while disallowing the partial input
tax claimed on the contention that the Holding company has claimed additional input tax in the sales tax retumns for the periods February 2014,
March 2014 and July 2014, The management has filed an appeal before DCIR against the said order. The matter is pending for adjudication. The
Holding company is confident that this matter will ultimately be decided in its favour, hence no provision is made in these consclidated
condensed interim financial infermation in this respect.

c) The Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) has been claiming excessive amounts from the Helding company which mainly relates to non-aercnautical
charges comprising of land lease rent and the license fee. As atJune 30, 2016, the excessive amounts claimed by CAA are not acknowledged by
the Holding company aggregated to Rs, 9,429,076 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 8,642,635 million) including latepayment surcharge and
lnleresl thereon ameunting to Rs. 6,120.5% million (December 31, 2015:Rs. 4,976.653 million). In view of the understanding reached through a

jum of Und ding (MoU) which was concluded in the meeting held on January 24, 2011 between the representatives of the Holding
company and CAA, the management does not accept the higher amounts being claimed by CAA,

During the afore mentioned meeting, the matter of chargeability of rates for non-aercnautical services was amicably resclved whereby it was
agreed that CAA shall charge rates as were decided in the arbitration award of 1998. The Mol was signed in the form of minutes of the meeting,
however CAA has continued to charge higher rates for non aemnautlcal serwr.as mlhul than those agreed by virtue of the said MoU. However,
the management maintains its position on the cf of i on art jon award of 1998 and the understanding (MoU) reached
between the representatives of CAA and the Holding company during January 2011.

Further, in relation to the afore mentioned surcharge and interest payable, the management considered that the same are not part of the Holding
company’s agreement with CAA and accordingly in view of the management such surcharge and interest payable shall never be paid by the
Holding company. The Helding oompanyis considering to take up this matter again with the Aviation Division of Government of Pakistan for
resclution in the light of the previous understanding reached with CAA. Accordingly, no e;(oesswe amount shall evenlua!ly beoome payable to
CAA and therefore, no provision for the ive amount has been made in these fid; i d interim fi ir

d) Claims against the Holding company not acknowledged as debt amount to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2015: Rs.903.317 million).

e) Contingencies relating to income tax matters are disclosed in note 19.1.2,

Commitments

a) Commitments for capital expenditure amounted to Rs. 479.16 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 852.90 million).

b) Outstanding letters of credit amounted to Rs. 1,788.06 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 3,607.65 million).

¢) Outstanding letters of guarantee amounted to Rs. 3,697 .25 million (December 31, 2015: Rs. 182.21 million).

d) The Holding company has entered into an agreement for purchase of aircraft, the remaining commitments of which aggregate to USD1,527 904
million (December 31, 2015: USD 1,527,904 million) equivalent to Rs. 160,018.455 million (December 31, 2015: Rs.160,233.584 million) based

on catalogue prices. The Holding company has not made certain payments on its due dates as per the terms ofthe agreement. Therefore, the
execution of the agreement is yet to be made.

e) The amount of future in ing lease relating to aircraft 777-200 ER, 737-800, A320-232 and A320-200 and the period
in which these payments will become due is as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
(Rupees in ‘000)
Mot later than one year 6,893,375 7,575,917
Later than one year but not later than five years 30,060,851 29,980,859
Later than five years 7,579,921 6,550,685

44,534,147 44,116,461
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Six months period ended Quarter ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
Note Rupees’'000
12 REVENUE - net
Passenger 38,415,857 42,452,199 18,185,738 18,435,323
Cargo 1,456,681 1,831,191 736,976 1,016,106
Excess baggage 370,899 389,285 165,797 145,011
Charter 312,793 201,359 166,902 102,803
Engineering services 591,178 219,102 169,853 74,714
Handling and related services 167,516 274,169 71,386 130,717
Mail 134,493 119,006 70,349 61,850
Room, food and beverages sales 5,443 800 5,672,093 3,274,068 3,301,382
Others 1,270,106 1,312,475 558,917 720,937
48,163,323 52,470,880 23,399,986 23,988,842
Six months period ended Quarter Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) {Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) {Un-Audited)
13 COST OF SERVICES - Others
3,903,277
Salaries, wages and allowances 9,959,786 7,772,629 5,312,358
1,108,792
Welfare and social security costs 1,238,875 1,131,677 684,767
Retirement benefits 989,715 1,052,141 505,798 718,675
Compensated Absences 421.705 196,169 210,834 130,694
) 5917 17,371
Legal and professional charges 16,758 27,759 v
258,518
Stores and spares consumed 738,225 479,550 512,871
1,280,131
Repair, Maintenance and overhaul 5,409,718 2,023824 3,423,332
1,357,119
Flight equipment rental 3,106,313 3,141,258 1,701,281
3,066,925
Landing and handling 7,102,341 6,058,401 3,733,994
675,135
Passenger services 1,560,141 1,300,838 823,310
508,674
Crew layover 1,336,314 1,191,757 725,509
35,854
Staff training 32,801 51,350 17,668
155,279
Food cost 286,391 282,323 159,703
20,841
Utilities 35,544 37.353 19,338
1,531,498
Communication 1,753,695 1,555,202 1,076,288
284,713
Insurance 505,443 551,224 226,021
265,635
Rent, rates and taxes 387,249 422 493 229,010
58,106
Printing and stationery 77,204 103,676 34,550
Amortization 6,787 11,477 2,184 9,838
Depreciation 3,445,633 2,047,289 1,929,228 1,379,748
Others 13.1 1,285,770 2,127,168 436,932 1,718,606
39,696,309 32,465,558 21,770,886 18,485,449

13.1 This includes an amount ot Rs. 250.035 million (June 30, 2015 : Nil ) pertaining to late return fees in customer induced damages in
respect of engineering & maintenance contract.
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Six months period ended Quarter Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) {Un-Audited) 1

000

P

14 OTHER PROVISIONS AND

ADJUSTMENTS
Property, plant and equipment
- loss on disposal of aircraft fleat 64,855 - 64,855 -
- deficit released from surplus on aircraft disposed off 553,850 = 553,850 -
- other assets written off 292,653 - 292,653
Provision for slow moving and obsolete spares 73,407 654,650 72,715 654,451
Provision for doubtful debts 222,189 356,060 72,189 356,060
Provision against doubtful advances 6,192 142,317 6,192 142,317
Provision against doubtful deposits 125,736 - 125,736 -
Provision / (reversal) against CWIP 2,650 - 2,650
Against other receivable 12,814 - 12,814 -
Late payment surcharge on fuel 1,009,878 1,294,656 591,513 1,294 656
Others 27,916 69,301 27,9186 69,301
_Zw 2,516,984 1 ,% 2,516,785
Six months period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

000

P

15 FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
- long term financing 2,791,981 1,955,707 1,463,333 1,074,008
-term Finance Certificate 1,275,318 1,706,429 621,314 73962
- short term borrowings 1,328,980 1,957,646 638,873 1,757,447
- advance from a subsidiary 46,563 37,517 26,733 37,517

5,442,842 5,657,299 2,750,253 2,942,834
Profit on sukuk certificates 279,564 371,369 138,172 34,276
Interest on liabilities against
assets subject to finance leases 164,950 227,726 164,950 108,892
Interest to provident fund 296,370 374,904 122,441 180,722
Discounting income on deposits (53,346) (7.281) (136,311) (7.281)
Arrangement, agency and commitment fee 195,505 289,829 113,465 201,489
Bank charges, guarantee commission and other related
charges 25,262 56,660 11,561 225
Amortisation of prepaid exposure fee 128,392 84,277 59,124 84,277

6,479,538 7,034,583 3,223,656 3,545,534

16 TAXATION Six months period ended Quarter Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
(Restated) (Restated)
R ‘000
P
Current 16 313,806 373,139 176,243 213,936
Deferred (1686,155) 42,148 (166,155) 42,148
147,651 415,287 10,088 256,084
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16.1. There has been no change in the status of contingencies as disclosed in note 38.1 to the annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015.

Six month period ended Quarter ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited! (un-audited) (un-audited)
(Restated) (Restated)
Rupees'000
17 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Loss for the period (Rupees in '000") (20,708,432) (12,762,088) (14,669,765) (11,279,203)

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding 5,234,511,117 4,951,024,071 5,234 511,117 5,063,722,041
Loss attibutable to:

A’ class ordinary shares (3.96) (2.58) 2.80 (2.23)
B’ class ordinary shares (1.98) (1.29) (1.40) (1.12)

171  The impact of ‘advance against equity’ has been taken into weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in previous
years.

17.2 There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Six ths period ended

June 30, June 30,
2016 2015
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
Rup in '000
18 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation (20,560,780) (12,346,801)
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation 3,462,986 2,957,485
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 64,855 (188,755)
Amortization 31,503 12,037
Provision for slow moving stores and spares 73,407 654,650
Provision / (reversal) against doubtful advances 6,192 .
Provision for employees' benefits 2,193,855 2,180,039
Provision for doubtful debts 222,189 330,837
Provision against doubtful deposits 125,736 .
R | of p for other ivabl 12,814 -
Finance costs 6,479,539 7,034,583
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss 92,728 432,227
Property, plant and equipment written off 282,653 #
Deficit released on write off of aircraft 553,850 36,187
Profit on bank deposits (36,716) (16,821)
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes (6,985,189) 1,085,668
Working capital changes:
Decrease / (increase) in stores and spare parts (108,076) (10,237)
Increase / (decrease) in trade debts 3,013,844 2,789,119
Decrease / (increase) in advances (18,509) 32,985
D in trade deposits and prepay t (2,591,218) (1,212,353)|
Increase in other receivables (971,202) (1,432,169)
Increase | (decrease) in trade and other payables 13,010,994 7,428,537
12,335,833 7,595,881
Cash generated from operations 5,350,644 8,681,549
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19 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of subsidiaries, profit oriented state-controlled entities, directors, key management
personnel and employee benefit funds. The Holding Company in the normal course of business carries out
transactions with various related parties. The transactions with related parties, other than those relating to issuance of
tickets at concessional rates to employees and directors according to the terms of employment / regulations and those
not mentioned elsewhere in these consclidated condensed interim financial statements are as follows:

Six months period
June 30, June 30,
2016 2015

(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
----- -Rupees in "000 —————-

Skyrooms (Private) Limited - Subsidiary

Payments made against in-transit passengers 116,799 177.577

Advances extended 1,833 1.891
PIA Investments Limited - Subsidiary

Management fee expense 32,547 37,197

Finance cost on advance 46,563 37,517

Advance received - 301,363
Minhal France S.A. - Sub-subsidiary

Management fee income 34,511 39,457

Abacus Distribution Systems Pakistan
(Private) Limited - Subsidiary

Charges in respect of courier services 82 -
Retirement funds

Contribution to Provident Fund and others 1,821,426 204,505

Interest on overdue balance of provident fund 295,698 374,904

Profit oriented state-controlled entities -
common ownership

Purchase of fuel 4,808,431 5441326

Insurance premium 501,728 511,778

Late payment interest 1,009,878 1,294 656

Finance cost 2,289,858 2,826,953

Airport related charges 6,385,285 3383.217
GoP - Major shareholder

Finance cost 398,904 396,712

Advance against equity from GoP - 3,974,371

Hajj revenue - 1,435,806
Key management personnel

Salaries, wages and other benefits 75,972 124,048

19.1 The Holding Company's sales of transportation services to subsidiaries, associates, directors and key management
personnel are not determinable.

20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES
20.1 Financial risk factors

The Holding Company activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk
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These consolidated condensed interim financial statements do not include all financial risk management information
and disclosures which are required in the annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the
Holding Company annual financial statements as at December 31, 2015. There have been no changes in any risk
management policies since the year end.

20.2 Fair value estimation

As atJune 30, 2016, Corporation's all assets and liabilities are carried at cost except for those mentioned below:

a) The Holding Company’s leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and aiffleet are stated at revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any,

b) The Holding Company classifies long-term investments in listed companies measured in the balance sheet at
fair values; and

c) The carrying value of all financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured at other than cost in these
consolidated condensed interim financial information approximate their fair values.

21 GENERAL
21.2 Non adjusting events after balance sheet date

On December 07, 2016, one of the aircraft (ATR-42) of the Holding Company bearing tail number AP-BHO,operating
on Flight No. PK - 661, was crashed near Havelian Tehsil, Abbottabad. As at June 30, 20186, the written down value
and aggregate surplus in equity of this aircraft is Rs. 1,027.184 miilion and Rs.427.567 million, respeciively.
Investigations for the identification of the reason for the crash are still in process.Substantial recovery of the demage
has been received by the Holding Company. No adjustment is necessary in these consolidated condensed interim
financial information in this regard.

22 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated condensed interim financial information were authorised for issue by the Board of Director in their
meeting held on May 10, 2017
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